
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

Jul 28, 2015 at 04:00 PM - 10:00 PM

TTUSD

,



AGENDA
 

12. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT
 

a) 05/26/2015 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes
 

13.1. Approval of Minutes
 

13.3. Contracts
 

b) 06/30/2015 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes
 

13.2. Financial Report
 

13. CONSENT CALENDAR
 

a) Executive Summary
 

14.1. Facilities Operating Room (OR) Light Project Update and
Recommendation For Award of Bid
 

14.3. Contracts
 

a) Executive Summary
 
b) ABD-21_Mark-up Version
 

14.4. ABD-21 Physician and Professional Service Agreements
Policy
 

a) Executive Summary
 

14.5.1. Six-month Check-in/Update
 

b) Board Goals Dashboard
 

14.5.2. Meeting Minutes Format
No related materials

14.5. Board Goals
 

b) Recommendation for Award
 

14.2. Resolution Directing Placer And Nevada Counties, California, To
Levy a Tax To Pay The Principal of and Interest on The District’s General
Obligation Bonds for Fiscal Year 2015-16
 

14.3.1. NTRMG_TFHD_Diagnostic_Imaging_PSA_2015

c) ABD-21_Clean Version
 

14. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND ACTION
 

2015 Jul 28 Regular BOD Meeting_Agenda
 

ITEMS 1 -11 See Agenda
 

a) MEC Report_July 2015
 

13.3.1.
Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015

14.5.3. Board Retreat Date
No related materials

Meeting Book - 2015 Jul 28 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

Agenda Packet Contents

Page 4

Page 7

Page 9

Page 21

Page 27

Page 57

Page 84

Page 85

Page 90

Page 111

Page 176

Page 177

Page 197

Page 210

Page 211



15.1. Finance Committee Meeting
 
15.2. Community Benefit Committee – No meeting
 
15.3. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting
 
15.4. Personnel/Retirement Committee Meeting – No meeting
 

15. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
 

a) CEO/CIO Report_July 2015
 

16.1. Strategic Initiatives Update
 

b) CNO/COO Report_July 2015
 

16.2. CEO Search
 

16. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS
 

23. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT
 

15.5. Quality Committee – No meeting
 

16.3. Marketing Update
 

ITEMS 17 - 22 See Agenda
 

a) Meeting Evaluation Form
 

Page 212

Page 213

Page 215

Page 217

Page 219

Page 221



Page 1 of 3 
 Denotes Action Item 

B 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 
Tuesday, July 28, 2015 at 4 p.m. 

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 
11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA

4. INPUT AUDIENCE:

5. CLOSED SESSION:
5.1. Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106)

Proposed New Services or Programs: Two (2) items 
Estimated Date of Public Disclosure:   12/31/15 and 06/30/16 

5.2. Conference with Legal Counsel; Existing Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(1)) 
The Board finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will 
prejudice the position of the local agency in the litigation. 

Name of Case: American Tile v. Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
Names of Parties or Claimants: American Tile 

5.3. Quality Report (Health & Safety Code § 32155)   
Number of items: One (1) 

5.4. Medical Staff Credentials (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
5.5. Approval of Closed Session Minutes of: 

06/30/2015 

6. DINNER BREAK
APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER

8. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA

9. INPUT – AUDIENCE
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state your
name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24
hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Board cannot
take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly
answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting.

10. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS
This is an opportunity for members of the Employee Associations to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.

4 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 28, 2015 AGENDA – Continued 

 

  Page 2 of 3 
 Denotes Action Item 

 
11. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

 
12. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT  

12.1. Medical Staff Report .......................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

13. CONSENT CALENDAR    
These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board at one 
time without discussion.  Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be 
removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar. 

13.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings    
 05/26/2015 and 06/30/2015 .............................................................................................. ATTACHMENT  

13.2. Financial Report    
 June 2015 Preliminary Financials ........................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

13.3. Contracts   ....................................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
13.3.1. Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015 

 
14. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

14.1. Facilities Operating Room (OR) Light Project Update and Recommendation For Award 
of Bid  .............................................................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

 *  scheduled item commencing at 6:30 p.m. 
The Board is asked to approve the award of bid related to the Operating Room (OR) 
light project. 

14.2. Resolution Directing Placer And Nevada Counties, California, To Levy a Tax To Pay The 
Principal of and Interest on The District’s General Obligation Bonds for Fiscal Year 
2015-16  ..........................................................................................................................  ATTACHMENT 
The Board is asked to approve Resolution 2015-05 directing Placer and Nevada 
Counties to levy a tax. 

14.3. Contracts  ........................................................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
14.3.1. NTRMG_TFHD_Diagnostic_Imaging_PSA_2015 

14.4. ABD-21 Physician and Professional Service Agreements Policy  .................................. ATTACHMENT 
This policy has been updated following Compliance Committee review and is presented 
for Board Approval. 

14.5. Board Goals  .................................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT  
14.5.1. Six-month Check-in/Update 
14.5.2. Meeting Minutes Format  
14.5.3. Board Retreat Date 

 
15. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

15.1. Finance Committee Meeting – 07/23/2015 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
15.2. Community Benefit Committee – No meeting  
15.3. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting  
15.4. Personnel/Retirement Committee Meeting – No meeting  
15.5. Quality Committee – No meeting  
 
 

5 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 28, 2015 AGENDA – Continued 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is August 25, 2015, 11603 Donner 
Pass Rd., Truckee, CA.  A copy of the Board meeting agenda is posted on the District’s web site (www.tfhd.com) at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

 Denotes Action Item 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on the basis 
of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate participation of the 
disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact 
the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 3 of 3 
 

16. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
These reports are provided for information only and not intended for discussion. Any Board Member may request discussion on 
an item, additional information from staff related to items included in a report, or request a topic be placed on a future agenda 
for further discussion. 

16.1. Strategic Initiatives Update ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 Staff reports will provide updates related to key strategic initiatives. 
16.2. CEO Search  ......................................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

A written update will be provided related to the status of the CEO Search.  
16.3. Marketing Update  ............................................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

Staff report will be provided related to marketing initiatives.  
 

17. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

18. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
 

19. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
 

20. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY  
 

21. OPEN SESSION  
 

22. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

23. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT ..................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Board will identify and discuss any occurrences during the meeting that impacted the 
effectiveness and value of the meeting. 
 

24. ADJOURN 

6 of 221



 
 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
   

    DATE:   July 16, 2015 
  PAGE NO.     1 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE’S 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - OPEN MEETING 
July 28, 2015 

 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 

 
REFERRED BY: 

 
RECOMMEND/ 

ACTION 
 

 

Consent Approval Items   

1. P&T Committee The P&T Committee recommended approval at their meeting on 7/15/15 of the 
following: 
 
Pre-printed orders:  
 Admission Orders – addition of RT orders as predefined check boxes 

instead of fill in the blank 
 Anesthesia Continuous Epidural Infusion – removal of anticoag guideline 

statement for CPOE 
 ED Bridge Transition Orders – removal of dose range for Tylenol for fever 
 ACS – removal of dose range for morphine 
 Pediatric Pain Management – Remove Tyco due to safety concern with 

variable metabolism in children – Approved and will go to OB/PEDS next 
 OB – Labor – Pre-check of several orders 
 Ventilator Orders – addition of “sedation” in propofol titration 

Additions and Deletions to Formulary list: 
 Removal of Isoproterenol – Medication has not been used 
 OB Override List – Addition of Midazolam 

Policies: 
 Annual approval of ECC P&P’s 
 Pharmacy Electrolyte Protocol – allow pharmacist to D/C after 3 days of 

labs WNL, approval of new tracking form 
 TFH/IVCH Pneumococcal Assessment Form – New form (Note: This was 

an addendum to the P&T meeting as it was approved at IC directly 
following the meeting). 

Approval 

2. Infection Control Committee The Infection Control Committee recommended approval at their meeting on 
7/15/15 of the following:  
 Sharepoint Updates - 90 P&Ps; Policy Owner/Approver updated  
 AIPC-1501: Transmission-based (Isolation) Precautions - #4 

Approval 

7 of 221



 
 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
   

    DATE:   July 16, 2015 
  PAGE NO.     2 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE’S 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - OPEN MEETING 
July 28, 2015 

 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 

 
REFERRED BY: 

 
RECOMMEND/ 

ACTION 
 

 
 AIPC-1502: ECC Enhanced Standard Precautions - #5 
 AIPC-1503: Disposing used Suction Liners - #6 
 AIPC-39: Environmental Controls: Temperature and Humidity - #7 
 Chemical inventory Updates - #8 
 AIPC-59: ICRA Infection Control Risk Assessment for Construction #9 
 AIPC-56: Ice Machines Sanitary Care and Maintenance - #10 
 AIPC-135: Vaccine Administration Documentation - #11 
 ANS-118: Visitors for Patient Care Units - #12 
 Infection Control Risk Assessment 2015 - #14 

3. Department of Surgery The Department of Surgery, at their meeting on 7/13/15, approved the following 
policies: 
 Patient Preparation for Elective Procedures  - To establish a standardized 

process for planning elective surgical and other invasive procedures in the 
Perioperative Services Department of Tahoe Forest Health System. 

 Perioperative New Products Value Analysis - 1.0 To ensure that all new 
medical supplies, products, and technologies receive appropriate 
approvals before being introduced into the Perioperative Services 
Department at either Tahoe Forest Hospital or Incline Village Community 
Hospital. 

Approval 

 

8 of 221



 

Page 1 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

b 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DRAFT MINUTES 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 at 4 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 

11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting called to order at 4:02 p.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Board: Karen Sessler, President; Chuck Zipkin, Vice President; Greg Jellinek, Secretary; Dale Chamblin, 

Treasurer; John Mohun, Director  
 
Staff:  Jake Dorst, Interim Chief Executive Officer; Jayne O’Flanagan, Director Human Resources; 

Patricia Barrett, Clerk of the Board 
 
Other:  Michael Colantuono, acting General Counsel 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
None. 
 

4. INPUT AUDIENCE:   
None. 
 

5. Identification of district designated labor negotiator 
The Board will identify the Chief Human Resources Officer (CHRO) as the District’s designated negotiator 
for negotiations with the Employees’ Association (EA) and Employees’ Association of Professionals (EAP) 
 
The CHRO provided background related to need for negotiation with the employee associations.   
 
Director Mohun joined the meeting at 4:05 p.m. 
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director, seconded by Director Chamblin, to appoint Jayne O’Flanagan, 

CHRO, as labor negotiator.  Roll call vote taken. Approved unanimously. 
 
Mr. Colantuono read the Board into Closed Session. 
Open session recessed at 4:06 p.m. 
 

6. CLOSED SESSION:   
Discussion held on privileged matters. 
 

7. DINNER BREAK 
APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 

9 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 2 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

 
8. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 

Open Session reconvened at 6:00 p.m. 
 

9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
Director Sessler indicated that two items are time sensitive and will commence at the time noted on the 
agenda. 
 
The Public was reminded that the meeting is televised and of the importance of keeping comments 
respectful. 
 

10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
Michael O’Malley commented on the request for a medical director at the April board meeting. Mr. 
O’Malley shared that he had spoken with a representative with the UC Davis clinical trials and this 
individual indicated it is not true that another director was required or affiliation would be lost if not done. 
Mr. O’Malley believes this illustrates that Board members have no interest in watching out of the District 
and called for Director Sessler to step down immediately.  Mr. O’Malley further indicated that he has 
forwarded the matter to the Nevada County DA’s office. 
 
Dr. Heifetz responded to Mr. O’Malley’s statements by reading an email form the individual who had from 
UC Davis who had spoken with Mr. O’Malley expressing that she was extremely uncomfortable with the 
conversation and had concerns that her comments would be misrepresented. 
 
Greg Tirdel introduced himself as a physician practicing in community for 19 years.  Dr. Tirdel is concerned 
that something is being lost in all these Board meetings; THFD is a great hospital district providing great 
patient care.  Steps have been taken to make this the best mountain hospital as noted by the shared 
achievements and awards received by the hospital. The Board needs to start coming together; be 
constructive, be involved, and help not hurt. 
 
Pete Forni commented that the Board made a point in December or January about being transparent.  It is 
important that the Board have transparency to the public.  Noticed as of last week the last set of minutes 
posted is from March and there has been little or no feedback from the Board in response to public 
comments.  Mr. Forni recommends incorporating a response into the minutes. Mr. Forni also stated that 
he is not sure if the Board is aware of the problem with the pricing of oncology drugs.  If a cap is put in 
place TFHD will be in trouble. The positive flow from the drug revenue will become negative.  Some 
attention needs to be paid to the pricing strategy. 
 

The Clerk of the Board responded to Mr. Forni’s comments related to the posting of  
minutes indicating that the April minutes are included in the May agenda packet 
(today’s meeting) for approval and will be finalized for uploading following approval. 

 
Samara Kemp introduced herself as a concerned citizen. Ms. Kemp has been monitoring the Board 
meetings recently and heard comments that the physicians should be giving the hospital there time for 
meetings for nothing.   Ms. Kemp reviewed some of her personal medical bills and identified how much of 
each charge was actually paid to the physicians.  The myriad of meetings that these physicians go to does 

10 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

 

Page 3 of 12 
 

not allow them to make money at their practice and they should not be asked to provide their expertise 
without compensation. 
 
Community member shared his experience with TFHD and a life saving event involving TFH and Dr. Tirdel.  
Physicians are highly valued in our community. 
 
Pete Rivera indicated he has been coming to meetings for the last eight months.  His has criticism about 
how the hospital is being run stating that this is a public hospital and everything that goes on is public. Mr. 
Rivera mentioned the previous CEO and the related allegations of a conflict of interest. Mr. Rivera believes 
the Board attempted to pacify the public by saying there was not enough evidence and feels the public 
should get to see the report: the Board needs to start doing their job. 
 
Conrad Snover [sic] expressed concern about hearing that some desire to have the hospital go back to 
basics and only provide core services.  Mr. Snover is concerned that as the community is growing and 
evolving and believes the hospital should be doing the same thing.  Mr. Snover indicated that he heard 
from Director Jellinek that he would not take any action that would negatively impact services and 
inquired as to whether Director Jellinek is in alignment with the physicians who have elected him to the 
Board or if his position has changed?  Mr. Snover does not want to lose his physician and encourages the 
Board to find way to help physicians by functioning as a unified board.  Mr. Snover encourages the Board 
to move ahead in a positive problem solving manner; consolidate strategy on record and support the CEO 
in executing that strategy.  
 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
Barbara Wong, President of Employee Association (non-licensed).  The employees appreciate the turn that 
has occurred.  A little more communication such as it relates to the Organizational Chart would be 
appreciated. She acknowledged the hospital employees and stressed that all staff contribute to the awards 
received by the Hospital. 
 

12. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT  
12.1. Medical Staff Report  

Dr. Dodd provided a summary of the MEC meeting and presented items for approval.  
 

ACTION: Motion made by Director Sessler, Second by Director Mohun, to approve MEC consent 
items 1 – 2.  Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 

 
13. CONSENT CALENDAR    

13.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings:  
 04/02/2015, 04/13/2015 and 04/28/2015   

13.2. Financial Report:  April 2015 Financials  
13.3. Contracts  

13.3.1. MacQuarrie_dba_NTEP_Emergency_Services_Agreement_IVCH_2015 
13.3.2. North_Tahoe_Orthopedic_Call_Coverage_Agreement 2015 
13.3.3. TF2020 Agreement for Medical Advisor Services EHR Technology Council 

a. Laird_TF2020_Agreement_for_Medical_Advisor_Services_EHR_Technology_Council_2015 
b. Lombard_TF2020_Agreement_for_Medical_Advisor_Services_EHR_Technology_Council_2015 

11 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 4 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

c. Meredith_TF2020_Agreement_for_Medical_Advisor_Services_EHR_Technology_Council_2015 
d. Scholnick_TF2020_Agreement_for_Medical_Advisor_Services_EHR_Technology_Council_2015 
e. Thompson_TF2020_Agreement_for_Medical_Advisor_Services_EHR_Technology_Council_2015 

13.3.4. TF2020 Agreement Wellness Neighborhood  
f. Arth_TFHD_TF2020_Agreement_Wellness_Neighborhood_2015 
g. Barta_TF2020_Agreement_for_Medical_Advisor_Services_Wellness_Neighborhood_and_EHR_ 

Technology_Council_2015 
h. Gustafsson_TFHD_TF2020_Agreement_Wellness_Neighborhood_2015 
i. Jensen_First_Amendment_to_TFHD_Wellness_Neighborhood_Medical_Advisor_Services_ 

Agreement_ for_Disparities_Group_2015 
 
Director Sessler pulled minutes of 4/15 and 4/28 for minor changes. 
Director Mohun pulled item 13.3.1 for discussion. 
 
Director Sessler introduced Michael Colantuono who will be acting General Counsel for the May 
and June regular Board meetings in Mr. Gross’ absence. 
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Jellinek, to approve consent 

items not pulled for discussion.  Roll call vote taken. Approved unanimously 
. 
The minutes of April 13, 2015 will be corrected to reflect the motion under item 8.2.1 was made by 
Director Zipkin; and a spelling error will be corrected in the April 28, 2015 minutes. 
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Sessler, seconded by Director Chamblin, to approve the 

minutes 4/13/2015 with noted change.  Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Sessler, seconded by Director Chamblin, to approve the 

minutes 4/28/2015 with noted change.  Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 
 
Director Mohun addressed the MacQuarrie contract submitted for approval under item 13.3.1.  He 
inquired of the CFO if she could comment to the significant increase.  It was noted that the Fair 
Market Value (FMV) evaluation indicated the existing contract was under market.  CNO, Judy 
Newland, shared background related to what prompted the FMV review at that time; noting the 
review also looked at comparisons in the state of Nevada.   
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Mohun, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve Consent 

item 13.3.1.  Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 
 

14. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
14.1. CEO Search  
 Timed item commenced at 6:45 p.m. 

Director Sessler introduced Don Whiteside with HFS Consultants.  Mr. Whiteside is conducting the 
CEO search and provided an updated related to the CEO search process and progress.  Mr. Whiteside 
indicated that he was in town this week to gather the input required to put together the job 
specification.   Mr. Whiteside shared locations and times of where he will be available to meet with 

12 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

 

Page 5 of 12 
 

stakeholders interested in providing constructive feedback.   In addition, Mr. Whiteside will be 
holding individual meetings with the Board members, the CEO, and members of the community. For 
those note available to meet with Mr. Whiteside in person, an email address has been established to 
receive written feedback.  Email:  TahoeForestCEOSearch@gmail.com.    
 
Director Chamblin expressed an interest in attending the community forum meetings and inquired as 
to the appropriateness of having a board member present.  Discussion took place regarding whether 
board presence would inhibit comment by the public. An agenda may be posted to allow more than 
two members of the Board to attend.  Verbiage will be included on the agenda to indicate the 
meeting is being held “simply to allow board members to attend. We do not intend to conduct 
business of the Board and no minutes will be taken.” 
 
Discussion took place regarding the notification to the public regarding the feedback forums. Director 
of Marketing, Paige Thomason, indicated that the timing of the press release and holiday impeded 
the information being included in the Friday Sierra Sun.  Email notifications were sent to various 
groups and interested parties in town. 
    

14.2. Physician Contracting 
 Timed item commenced at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Director Sessler provided a review of the process for working through the following agenda items.  
Question by the public will be taken at the conclusion of all three items. 

 
a. Physician Compensation Methodology  

Gayle McAmis, with the MSC Business Office, introduced herself and provided as summary of 
the physician compensation methodology education being provided. 
 
The goals of MSC physician compensation program 

 Pay within Fair Market Value 

 Pay a sufficient amount to recruit and retain physicians 
o May not be the same amount 

 Maintain internal equity between physicians 
o Both within and between specialties 

 Align physicians with the organization’s productivity and quality goals  

 Simple, clear and understandable to all parties 
 

A review of the MSC core model and an overview of the Medical Group Management Association 
(MGMA) whose survey is used to identify the base compensation based on a 3 year medium 
compensation reported in the survey were provided. 
  
An explanation of the Work Relative Value Units (WRVUs) was provided 
 
Discussion took place related to the number of independent contract physicians included in the 
MGMA data and whether this would skew the data at all.   MGMA does not report the names of 
organizations that respond to their survey but the data does include both large and small entities.  

13 of 221

mailto:TahoeForestCEOSearch@gmail.com


Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 6 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

 
A review of the ECG valuation and how it compares with the MSC model as well as FMV comparisons 
was provided.  
 
Director Sessler inquired as to why the District needed the MSC’s.  Ms. McAmis shared that the 
model came into being as a couple of physicians were not earning an income near what they 
would/could make in an area as close as Reno.  The trend nation wide is that physicians are less 
interested in running their own practice and would rather focus on the practice of medicine rather 
than the business of medicine.  
 
Director Mohun indicated the model presented reflects only the clinical MSC practice and not 
contracts related to medical directorships, TF2020’s etc. 

 
b. Medical Staff Outlook 

Dr. Shawni Coll, private practice OBGYN and Medical Director of Strategic Planning and 
Innovation provided input related to where the medical staff wants to be in the next 5 to 15 
years. Dr. Coll shared that physicians can earn 30 – 50% more income if working in Reno and 
that they stay in Truckee to serve the community, their neighbors, and coworkers. 
 
Dr. Coll expanded on the question raised by Dr. Sessler related to why the MSCs were first 
started, indicated that in 2006 as a physician could not make ends meet with his practice if he 
stayed in Truckee. The alternative to subsidizing the physician would have been to lose the 
physician and income brought into the District.  It was noted that the MSCs are not a losing 
prospect, and those services operating in the negative are services wanted in the community 
and require a 1 and 3 call burden.  
 
Physician leaders are concerned with recent comments being attributed to members of the 
Board and are requesting clarification from the Board regarding their vision and intended 
approach to physician contracting. 
 
Dr. Coll spoke to the progress made with physician alignment over the last 10 – 15 years and 
work being done by physicians in pushing Just Culture, lean principles, six sigma and other 
standards to improve alignment.   
 
Dr. Coll shared concerns related to comments made at the last board meeting related to the 
cost of medical directorships. Physicians are feeling attacked and working within a hostile work 
environment.  Physicians stay here because of the hospital, the amazing nursing staff, unit 
clerks and staff from front line to leadership.  Physicians feel they are being attacked via emails 
from community members saying they are neither needed nor valued. 
 
Physicians need from the Board a strategic direction. Concerns related to comments made by 
the Board indicating a desire to bring the hospital back to primary care without specialist is a 
concern.  Physicians whose contracts come up for renewal in 2016 need to understand the 
Board’s intent to allow them time to find other jobs.   
 

14 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

 

Page 7 of 12 
 

Director Mohun indicated he was not aware there was such anxiety amongst the physicians and 
appreciates the points made by Dr. Coll related to the value the MCSs bring to the organization.  
Discussion took place related to physician alignment and quality. Dr. Coll shared that the 
medical staff has an extremely robust peer review to ensure the highest quality is provided.  
The medical staff strategic plan focuses on quality metrics as well and there are opportunities 
to provided program and service line projects to enhance clinical work for physician’s not 
meeting the WRVUs. 
 
Director Chamblin stated that there is little the Board can due to address the community critics; 
they can, however, provide an administrative policy or plan to illustrate the Board’s support of 
physicians.  
 
Discussion took place regarding the purpose of the MSC and whether there may be other 
models to better meet the needs of the community.  Dr. Coll reminded the Board of the request 
presented to the Board at a previous meeting for approval of funding to engage ECG to conduct 
a study to help identify alternate physician and hospital alignment models.  An outside 
consultant is needed due to the complexity and to ensure that the physicians trust the models 
identified.  All physicians would be invited to participate; both private practice and the MSC 
physicians.  
 
Dr. Dodd responded to Director Mohun’s comments, stating that physicians are already being 
paid on quality measures and it would not be necessary to build additional language around 
this into contracts as it already impacts payments.  Director Mohun agreed, indicating that the 
contracts have a quality component already included as required by CMS.   
 
The Interim CEO added that any alignment model needs to relate to ICD10 EMR and other 
initiatives.  

 
c. Financial Impacts of Physician Transitions  

Tim Garcia-jay, Executive Director of Clinics, introduced Lori McGuire with PhysiciansXL. 
 
Ms. MacGuire provided board education related to the financial impacts of physicians 
transitions. 
 
It was noted that TFHD has a difficult and onerous call schedule which is one of the components 
that would be looked at by the consultant (ECG) if engaged.  
 
Director Sessler commented on the importance of an aligned integrated system and 
appropriate physician compensation that may enable the District to avoid multiple contracts 
with individual physicians.  
 
Director Jellinek addressed the comments made earlier regarding the rumors circulating 
amongst the physicians related to board comments pertaining to the intended direction for the 
hospital.  Director Jellinek believes these rumors to be inaccurate. 
 

15 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 8 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

Director Zipkin expressed that this is a community of medically savvy members and to say we 
need a typical rural essential care hospital is 50 years behind the times.   Physicians incentivized 
to come to this community are earning this money. 
 
Director Mohun indicated the issue is not about money.  It is about the best interest of the 
District, not to increase or decrease someone’s livelihood.  The Board wants a full 100 percent 
alignment with the physicians.  All the nonsense and rumors can be dismissed.  Encourages 
physicians to assist the Board help them work through this process in the next couple of 
months.  
 
It was noted that there is a fine line between administrative responsibilities and those of the 
Board; the Board approves the methodology and does not get into the weeds. 
 
Ann Liston spoke to the Board regarding her mild TBI received as a result of an accident and the 
high quality of care she has received from Dr. Winans.  Ms. Liston shared that due to her TBI 
she experienced difficulty with driving which made her thankful that she could receive 
treatment locally.   
 
Dr. Johanna Koch with Incline Village shared that she appreciated some of the things said to day 
and wanted to clarify a few things.  Dr. Koch believes the role of the Board has become 
confused and the Board has become the defacto administration.  Director Mohun’s comments 
that money is not the concern is not accurate as money is what the public expresses as the 
primary concern.  The Board has not adequately expressed clearly what their direction is; the 
Board needs to own responsibility and take action.   
 
Dr. Josh Scholnick shared a summary of the types of services provided in his practice and the 
related benefit to community.  Dr. Scholnick believes that if the certainty of a salary goes away, 
the doctors will as well. 
 
Dr. Nina Winans practices sports medicine; non-surgical orthopedic care.  She is a MSC 
physician and medical director. Dr. Winans acknowledged the amazing strides that have been 
made though community collaboration to improve the safety and health of youth sports. In 
response to discussions related to physician alignment and compensation, Dr. Winans noted 
that she and many other physicians participate in meetings in addition to their clinical and 
medical director roles at the request of administration to provide their expertise. 
 
Erin Koppel, Oncologist, addressed the Board based on the potential that the Board is 
considering limiting MSC physician contracts or compensation. Requiring patients to drive to 
Sacramento, or in limited cases to Reno, is unacceptable.   
 
Sam Smith, PA at TFH shared his experience of having worked in Reno and the Bay Area.  High 
value care is of the utmost importance.  NPs and PAs hold a key piece in providing care in the 
new health care climate.  Having quality physicians to provide oversight is important. It is 
imperative to have the highest quality physicians and if specialists are forced out he would be 

16 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

 

Page 9 of 12 
 

concerned for the patients. Sees administration falling apart and feels the Board has the wrong 
focus by taking aim at physicians rather than focusing on growing the District.  
 
Artim [sic], a five year Truckee resident and former cancer patient shared his experiences with 
Drs. Tirdel and Dodd.  Is concerned that, as an outsider reading all the rumors in the newspaper 
and online, there is not a clear direction of what this board wants to do.  Shared experience 
with his wife who was pregnant with triplets and experienced complications three months prior 
to delivery date.  He believes he would have lost his wife and three children if the hospital and 
its services were not available.   There needs to be a clear message of the future provided to 
the community.  The Board needs to be careful not to scare the physicians away; they are 
needed and provide vital services.  
 
Randy Hill commented that it is sad, disgusting, and embarrassing that physicians have had to 
stand up and defend themselves. The physicians are not being overpaid.  The Board represents 
thousands, “not the handful of misanthropes that speak at the meetings.”   Mr. Hill, speaking 
on behalf of a number of community members, implores the Board to cut through the 
nonsense; it is time to govern. 
 
Greg Tirdel, Medical Director of MSC, addressed the inference that the angst of physicians is 
caused only by rumors. The physicians did not create the comments; these were made by the 
Board.  Physicians need to understand that they have the support of the Board.   
 
Melissa Kaime, Oncologist at the Cancer Center, commented that the District has a Quality 
team at the hospital and was recently awarded a 5 start rating by CMS; what else does the 
Board want?  Dr. Kaime encourages the Board to take some time and get to know the quality 
being provided and not to mess with something that is not broken.  The Board does not need to 
fix the hospital; it needs to enhance it, make it better, and speak of it positively and not tear it 
down in their public comments. 
 
Dr. Jerry Schaffer came to TFH from Berkley part time after having been encouraged by Dr. 
Zipkin to come augment his practice.  Dr. Schaffer made the transition to full time in the 
summer of 2013 after realizing that the medical community, primary care specifically, in our 
community is exceptional.  Primary care physicians go into the hospital to see their patients and 
are supported by the specialists, as they are supported by primary care physicians.  Physicians 
are being demeaned in this community now. Hospital could fail if the subspecialists who 
support the primary care patients were to leave.  
 
Pam Hobday, speaking as a community advocate and part of the TFHD family, shared that it is 
very difficult to read that two physicians received what she believes are demeaning 
communications that constitute a hostile work environment.  This is a tipping point for the 
Board this evening and she hopes the Board will give a direction on what their next steps will 
be; the community is asking for governance and strategic direction.  Paint the picture of what 
the hospital of the future will look like; physicians and the community deserve the truth.  She 
wants to hear it soon, before 2016.   
 

17 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 10 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

Sandy Spaitch addressed the Board related to the questions related to quality.  Ms. Spaitch 
shared that TFH has one of the most engaged medical staff’s she has worked with.  They engage 
quality even more than the Board can appreciate and are more engaged than other medical 
staffs she has worked with. The Board needs to appreciate the quality that they have in their 
physicians.  They drive quality, they are quality.  
 
Jay Gustafson, community member.  It is no loner a one horse town or one stop sign town. He 
has heard each of the Board members agree the comments related to compensation and 
services are rumors and that the services are needed in the community.  The Board needs to be 
proud of the hospital and physicians in our community. 
 
Rob Webb, patient and community member shared his hope the Board allows the physicians to 
keep up the good work.  Encourages the board to listen to the doctors and community. Don’t 
lose it, improve on it. 
 
Dr. Julie Conyers introduced herself as a new physician to TFH. She came to this community 
because the Hospital blew her socks off due to the culture of quality from all layers of the 
organization.  It is one of the best places she has ever worked. Dr. Conyers shared her 
experience in urban environments and what she described the Physician fugitives running from 
their background and lacking board certification who would be willing to work for the reduced 
compensation that has been referenced recently by Board members.  The culture of quality is 
very unique to this organization; it is working and not broken.   

 
15. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

15.1. Governance Committee Meeting – 05/13/15  
This topic was taken out of order to accommodate a scheduled item. 
Director Sessler provided an update related to the committee’s May meeting.  The Committee 
discussed coordination of a follow up meeting to the Board retreat which is tentively schedule in 
September.  At part of the compliance plan, the Board directed the Fox Group to conduct quarterly 
contract compliance audits.  Contracts reviewed as part of the initial audit were compliant for 
signature and contract routing form.  Review of the policy is underway.  Director Jellinek applauded 
the Fox Group for the work they have done for the District.  The committee is looking at education 
options and new forms to track board goals under development. 
 
Director Sessler commented that one of the Board’s priority roles is to provide strategic direction.  It 
is clear the Board is being asked to do so and provide direction on its priorities.   The Board’s job is to 
think to the future, informed by the past, and provide direction to management staff who then takes 
on the task of accomplishing those goals.  Director Sessler shared that she believes strongly in the 
Speak Your Peace campaign; the right to disagree and the right to your own opinion but not your 
own facts.   She believes in the physicians and agrees that the District and physicians should 
investigate other alignment models that include fair compensation and production based quality 
standards.    The comments related to what essential services include needs to be broad as it will 
mean something different to each individual.   Dr. Sessler expressed her support of the physicians. 
 

18 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

 

Page 11 of 12 
 

Director Chamblin would like to agendize this issue at the next meeting to put the topic to rest and 
provide certainty to everyone involved. 
 
Director Zipkin thanked those in attendance for providing feedback.  The impacts on the broader 
community if the District does not provide certain services are significant.  He encourages those who 
hear a rumor that is not believed to be correct, to call the Board on it.  
 
Director Mohun indicated it is important to have a robust discussion.  He is in agreement with many 
of the comments made today.  The confusion is in that the Board has an obligation to have oversight 
over the regulatory controls and ensure the highest level of compliance.  As a Board member he 
appreciates everything the doctors do and the services provided. 
 
Discussion took place related to how this feedback and the requests of Dr. Coll and other audience 
members need to be agendized at the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Colantuono recommended the Board consider adopting a resolution that responds to the fear by 
saying that Board does not intend to reduce the level of service provided to the community. Financial 
viability and impact on the organization are considerations. 
 
Staff will draft a resolution for Board adoption consideration.   

 
15.2. Finance Committee Meeting – 05/21/15   

15.2.1. Refinancing of 2006 Revenue Bonds – Update 
Director Chamblin provided an overview of the direction given to the CFO to pursue refinancing of 
the revenue bonds.  CFO recognized for her successful efforts.   Director Zipkin asked for clarification 
of how the funds are paid down.  CFO provided education related will save the district 
approximately $200k per year.  

15.3. Personnel/Retirement Committee Meeting – No Meeting  
15.4. Quality Committee – No Meeting  
15.5. Community Benefit Committee – No Meeting 

 
16. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

16.1. Strategic Initiatives Update  
This topic was taken out of order to accommodate a scheduled item. 
Director Sessler reviewed the format of the reports and asked the Board if they had any questions 
related to the information provided. 

 
 Discussion proceeded to topic of CEO Search Update 
 

17. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
Finance Committee – cash in investments and security of those investments.   
 

18. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
Policy to reflect approved compensation methodology  
Establish board strategic direction around physicians contracting – certainly of scope of services.   

19 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
May 26, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 12 of 12 
 Denotes Action Item 

Engagement of consultant to assess hospital and physician alignment models 
CEO Search 
 

19. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
None. 
 

20. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY  
 

21. OPEN SESSION  
 

22. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
None. 

23. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT  
The Board will identify and discuss any occurrences during the meeting that impacted the effectiveness and 
value of the meeting. 
 

24. ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 

20 of 221



Page 1 of 6 
 Denotes Action Item 

b 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DRAFT Minutes 
Tuesday, June 30, 2015 at 4 p.m. 

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 
11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting called to order at 4:17 p.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Board: Karen Sessler, President; Chuck Zipkin, Vice President; Greg Jellinek, Secretary; Dale Chamblin, 

Treasurer; John Mohun, Director  
 
Staff:  Jake Dorst, Interim Chief Executive Officer; Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer; Judy Newland, 

Chief Nursing/Operations Officer; Jayne O’Flanagan, Chief Human Resources Officer; Patricia 
Barrett, Clerk of the Board 

 
Other:  Michael Colantuono, acting General Counsel; Don Whiteside, HFS Consultants 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
None.  

4. INPUT AUDIENCE:   
None. 
 
General Counsel read the Board into Closed Session. 
 
Open session recessed at 4:18 p.m. 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION:   
Discussion held on privileged matters. 

    
6. DINNER BREAK 

APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 
 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
Open session reconvened at 6:02 p.m. 
 

8. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

9. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
Kate Cooper, Director of Truckee Surgery Center (TSC), provided background related to the surgery center 
noting that there is room for growth.  Encourages the Board and administration to embrace the value of 
the TSC and collaborate for future growth.  
 
 
 

21 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 30, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 2 of 6 
 Denotes Action Item 

10. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
Stacey Tedsen recognized the Employee Associations for donating $5k toward the recreation district’s pool 
project and for their work done to address and reduce the wage increases.  Ms. Tedsen shared that the 
work done by the associations clearly supports the fact that the employees value the organization and the 
services proved to the community. 
 
Director Zipkin acknowledged the collegial work of the staff and administration with regard to the wage 
increase issue. 
 

11. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 
11.1. Medical Staff Report  

Dr. Dodd provided a review of the MEC June meeting.  
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Mohun,  to approve MEC items 

1 – 5 as presented.  Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 
 

12. CONSENT CALENDAR   
12.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings:  

05/01/01; 05/13/2015, 05/26/2015, 06/05/2015; 06/10/2015 and 06/18/2015   
 
Minutes of May 26, 2015 were pulled by staff for further review and edits. 

 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Jellinek, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve the 

minutes of 05/01/01; 05/13/2015, 06/05/2015; 06/10/2015 and 06/18/2015 as 
presented. Roll call vote taken. Approved unanimously. 

 
13. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

13.1. CEO Search  
Don Whiteside, with HFS Consultants, provided an update related to the search for a Chief Executive 
Officer.  Mr. Whiteside acknowledged the community, Board and staff for their input on the criteria 
being sought indicating he had received a strong response to the outreach being done. There are 
currently approximately 40 candidates being vetted, of which 25 are believed to meet the 
qualifications.  
 
Next steps will take 6 – 8 weeks for Mr. Whiteside to meet with the candidates. A slate of candidates 
will be presented to the Board near the end of August for review and to be narrowed to the top four 
(+/-) candidates for onsite visits.  It is anticipated that the full process will take approximately 3 – 4 
more months.  
 
An effort will be done to reach out further to north Lake Tahoe residents for input.  All input is 
welcome until such time the CEO is selected.  
 
Item 13.5 was discussed next. 
 
 

22 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 30, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  

Page 3 of 6 
 

13.2. Policy ABD-21   
As follow up to the May board meeting, section 2.0 of the board policy ABD-21 has been updated to 
reflect the agreed upon physician compensation methodology. 
 
Interim CEO, Jake Dorst, provided a review of the discussion from the May 26 board meeting 
regarding physician compensation education.  As was directed by the Board, revisions have been 
made to ABD-21.   
 
A review of the process for obtaining conceptual approval compared to legal approval of contracts 
was discussed. 
 
It was noted that Hooper Lundy and Bookman have reviewed the policy as well as the related 
resolution. 
 
Director Jellinek asked for additional verbiage to be included in the policy related to obtaining 
signatures on contracts.  
 
Dr. Coll encouraged the Board to approve the policy as presented and move forward with further 
review by the Compliance Committee of the other provisions requiring edit. 

 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Chamblin, to adopt policy ABD-

21 as presented and direct staff to ensure compliance review and updates are made to 
ensure contracts are signed by physician prior to performing services. 

 
13.3. Resolution 2015-04  

The interim CEO provided a summary of direction provided by the Board during the May 26 meeting 
regarding the development of a resolution stating the intention of the Board to maintain the level of 
service provided to the community and to maintain best practices regarding physician compensation. 
 
Discussion took place as to whether there are current services that the Board does not feel will be 
provided in the future due to financial constraints.  
 
It was noted that the resolution is not legally binding as there is no legal action by which the Board 
can tie the hands of future boards.  It is instead a statement of reassurance to the physicians 
documenting the Board’s commitment to acting in good faith with each other.  
 
Needed services are dictated by the public and the fiduciary responsibility of the District.  There may 
be times that a service line may need to be limited or added to respond to these factors. 

 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Jellinek, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve resolution 

2015-04 stating the intention of the Board to maintain the level of service provided to the 
community and to maintain best practices regarding physician compensation. 

 
 
 

23 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 30, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 4 of 6 
 Denotes Action Item 

13.4. Physician and Hospital Alignment Models  
Dr. Coll reviewed with the Board a proposal to engage an outside consultant to assist with 
assessment and education related to practice management models.  It was confirmed that the 
expense for this engagement has been included in the 2016 budget. 
 
Dr. Coll indicated that the consultant has a multi-tier program which includes an education 
component on the different models available and an assessment related to which practices should 
remain with the 1206D model and which could benefit from changing their model, and which model 
would work best for the medical staff.  
 
It was reported that three bids were received from DoctorsXL, MGMA, and ECG.  ECG has been 
selected as they familiar with TFHD and the medical staff and their expertise in this area surpasses 
the others.  
 
Executive Director of Clinics, Tim Garcia-Jay, reviewed various models that could be considered in 
addition to the 1206D model and it was confirmed that this process will involve all members of the 
medical staff and is not limited to the MSC physicians.  The process is anticipated to take 6 – 8 weeks 
to complete the first phase. 

 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Sessler, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve the 

engagement of an outside consultant to assist with the assessment and education 
around available physician and hospital alignment models.  Roll call vote taken. 
Approved unanimously. 

 
13.5. Quarterly Facilities Update 

Rick McConn and Mike Genet provided a review of the quarterly update of the Facilities 
Development Plan (FDP).  
 
It was reported that 14 of 15 Measure C projects have been completed.  Project 15 is expected to 
complete in the summer of 2016 and expected to be on budget.   
It was reported that the OR light project is expected to come to the Board for bid award approval 
next month. 
 
Discussion took place related to the project summary and the $1.4 million that comes out of the 
hospital’s budget and not from Measure C. This relates to the owner and regulatory scope 
modifications which increases the costs above the bond funding.  
 
Discussion returned to agenda order with Item 13.2 discussed next. 
 

13.6. Approved FY2016 Budget   
Director Chamblin provided a report out from the June 18, 2015 Special Meeting of The Board of 
Directors which resulted in the approval of the TY2016 budget and three-year capital plan for FY 17-
19.  It was noted that the budget reflected a pricing adjustments reflecting a 5% increase to select 
room rates and in emergency room level charges.  
 

24 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 30, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  

Page 5 of 6 
 

Director Sessler recognized the work done by management and employees; through this 
collaboration the Board was able to get to a budget that minimized the need for significant rate 
increases. 
 
It was noted that the Board will endeavor to have future budget meetings in a televised forum. 

 
13.7. Financial Report    

The CFO provided a review of the May financials noting that YTD figures look strong and are well 
ahead of budget on the EBIDA line. 

 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Sessler, seconded by Director Jellinek, to approve May 

financials.  Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 
 

13.8. Contracts    
The Board was asked to review the terms and conditions of the following contract prior to processing 
agreement for physician signature and final approval. 
 

13.8.1. TBD_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015 
 
Dr. Lombard provided an overview of the scope of responsibility related to the antimicrobial 
stewardship.   
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Mohun to approve the terms of 

the contract for the MDA for the Antimicrobial Stewardship Program.  Roll call vote 
taken.  Approved unanimously. 

 
14. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

14.1. Quality Committee – 06/09/2015 
14.1.1. 2015 Quality Committee Goals  
 
Director Jellinek provided a review of the topics discussed during the Board Quality Committee 
meeting adding that the discussion of outmigration was brought up.  
 
It was the consensus of the Board to have staff develop a proposal for data review and education 
related to outmigration and for the CEO to present an update to the Board once completed. 
 
ACTION: Motion made by Director Sessler, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve the Quality 

Committee goals as presented. Roll call vote taken.  Approved unanimously. 
 

14.2. Governance Committee Meeting – 06/10/2015 
Director Sessler provided a summary of the June Governance Committee meeting.  The Committee is 
working to finalize their goals and will likely present them to the Board for approval at the next 
meeting.  Review of policies continues, and ACHD Best Practices in Governance Certification is being 
pursued for the District along with consideration of the Special District Leadership Foundation 
District Transparency Certificate of Excellence.  

25 of 221



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
June 30, 2015 DRAFT Minutes 

 

  Page 6 of 6 
 Denotes Action Item 

 
14.3. Personnel/Retirement Committee Meeting – 6/18/2015 ................................................ ATTACHMENT  

Director Zipkin provided a summary of the June Personnel Committee meeting noting that TFHD will 
be in compliance with the new state law related to part-time employees’ accrued sick leave. 

 
14.4. Community Benefit Committee – No meeting  

 
14.5. Finance Committee Meeting – No meeting 
 

15. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
15.1. Strategic Initiatives Update  
 No questions were raised, nor did discussion take place. 
 

16. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
Governance Committee – Policy revisions, Best Practices in Governance certification, and Board single day 
offsite retreat to take place in Truckee. 
 
Community Benefit Committee – meeting to be scheduled once staff liaison transition to Karen Gancitano 
is completed. 
 

17. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
Facilities update 
Orthopedic Center of Excellence work with Kaufman Hall 
 

18. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
Director Zipkin shared his disappointment that there will no sponsorship of a rural health conference this 
year. 
 
Open session recessed at 7:15 p.m. 
 

19. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY  
Discussion held on privileged matters. 
 

20. OPEN SESSION  
Open session reconvened at 7:54 p.m. 
 

21. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

22. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT 
The Board will identify and discuss any occurrences during the meeting that impacted the effectiveness and 
value of the meeting. 
 

23. ADJOURN 
Open session adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 

26 of 221



127 of 221



228 of 221



329 of 221



430 of 221



531 of 221



632 of 221



733 of 221



834 of 221



935 of 221



1036 of 221



1137 of 221



1238 of 221



1339 of 221



1440 of 221



1541 of 221



1642 of 221



1743 of 221



1844 of 221



1945 of 221



2046 of 221



2147 of 221



2248 of 221



2349 of 221



2450 of 221



2551 of 221



2652 of 221



2753 of 221



2854 of 221



2955 of 221



3056 of 221



57 of 221



58 of 221



59 of 221



60 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  1

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT  
MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT FOR  

ANTIMICROBIAL STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM 

This MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT FOR ANTIMICROBIAL STEWARDSHIP 
PROGRAM (“Agreement”) is made and entered into, and shall be effective, as of August 1, 2015 
(“Effective Date”), by and between Tahoe Forest Hospital District, a California local healthcare 
district, doing business as Tahoe Forest Hospital (“Hospital”), and Tahoe Infectious Disease 
(“Medical Group”). 

RECITALS 

A. Hospital owns and operates an acute care hospital, multi-specialty facility located 
at 10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, California (“Facility”).   

B. Within the Facility, Hospital has implemented an Antimicrobial Stewardship 
Program (the “Program”), which evaluates  and monitors the judicious use of antibiotics in 
accordance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 1288.8 of the California Health and 
Safety Code. 

C. Additionally within the Facility, Hospital has developed the Pharmacy and 
Therapeutics Committee and the Infection Control Committee (collectively, the “Committees”) 
to provide guidance and best practice recommendations for these specialty areas to Hospital staff, 
physicians, and the Program. 

D. The Hospital desires to enter into an agreement with Medical Group to provide 
direction to the Program and the Committees by providing physician(s) who will render services 
and act as the  Medical Director of the Program (the “Medical Director”) and to monitor the 
quality and appropriateness of the Program and Committees.  

C. Medical Group provides medical director services through physician(s) duly 
licensed and qualified to practice medicine in the State of California, whom are board certified for 
the practice of medicine in the specialty of Infectious Disease and are proficient in all aspects of 
such specialty. 

D. Hospital desires to retain Medical Group to provide physician(s) who will serve as 
Medical Director and Medical Group desires to provide physician(s) to render services as further 
set forth herein in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the covenants, conditions 
and other terms contained herein below, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

61 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  2 
    
 

ARTICLE I 
ENGAGEMENT 

Hospital hereby engages Medical Group to provide physician(s) who will serve as the 
Medical Director, and Medical Group hereby accepts such engagement on the terms and conditions 
set forth in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II 
MEDICAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

2.1 Medical Director.  During the term of this Agreement, beginning on the Effective 
Date, Medical Group shall provide physician(s) who will serve and be designated as the Medical 
Director in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  In this regard, 
commencing on the Effective Date, Medical Group shall have physician(s) perform, for and on 
behalf of the Hospital, and in a competent, proactive, efficient and satisfactory manner, those 
services as set forth in the Medical Director - Scope of Responsibilities, attached as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by this reference (“Director Duties”). 

2.2 Dedication of Time.  Medical Group shall cause each physician(s) rendering 
services under this Agreement, to devote such time as is necessary to perform the Director Duties 
and responsibilities set forth herein.  Such Director Duties and time shall not include the provision 
of professional medical services to patients.  The parties agree that Medical Group will cause 
physicians rendering services under this Agreement to provide Director Duties and receive 
compensation therefore, in accordance with the terms of the Medical Director Fee Schedule, 
attached as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. 

2.3 Ultimate Authority. Medical Group hereby acknowledges and agrees that, 
notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Agreement, Hospital and, as its agent, 
Hospital’s Chief Executive Officer shall retain final and ultimate decision making authority over 
the business affairs of Facility, the Program, and each of its Committees, including without 
limitation the development and operation of Facility, the Program and the Committees. 

2.4 Qualifications.  Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services 
under this Agreement to maintain on an unrestricted basis: 

(a) California licensure as a physician; 

(b) Membership in good standing on Hospital’s medical staff and appropriate 
clinical privileges at Hospital in the Physician’s practice specialty; 

(c) Federal Drug Enforcement Administration (“DEA”) registration; 

(d) Professional liability insurance as set forth in Section 6.1;  

(e) Participation in good standing in the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs;  
 and 

(f) Board certification in Infectious Disease. 

62 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  3 
    
 

ARTICLE III 
COMPENSATION 

3.1 Compensation for Director Duties.  Subject to the completion of a Service Time 
Log, as described in Section 3.2 and within fifteen (15) days after the receipt and approval by 
Hospital of each Service Time Log, for each calendar month of the term of this Agreement (each, 
a “Service Month”), Hospital shall pay to Medical Group monthly compensation 
(“Compensation”) for all Director Duties provided hereunder, as set forth in the Medical Director 
Fee Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Such Compensation shall be paid on an hourly basis 
for each hour (to be prorated for partial hours) actually spent by Medical Group’s physician(s) in 
providing reasonable and necessary Director Duties during such Service Month. The Medical 
Group shall not be compensated for any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement to 
attend continuing medical education programs or training. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Hospital’s obligation to pay any Compensation to Medical Group shall be expressly conditioned 
upon Medical Group’s timely submission of the required Service Time Log documenting 
reasonable and necessary services actually performed that are applicable to such payment, and the 
written approval of such Service Time Log by Hospital. 

3.2 Service Time Log.  Each month during the term of this Agreement, Medical Group 
shall submit a written time log reflecting the actual time spent by Medical Group’s physician(s) 
rendering services under this Agreement and the actual duties performed as Director Duties during 
the prior month on the service time log attached as Exhibit C (the “Service Time Log”), or in 
such other form as may be requested by Hospital.  Medical Group shall submit such Service Time 
Log to Hospital within ten (10) days following the end of each Service Month.  No compensation 
shall be paid to Medical Group for a Service Month unless a Service Time Log for that Service 
Month has been submitted to and approved by Hospital.  If Medical Group fails to submit such 
Service Time Log by the tenth (10th) day following the end of a Service Month in which services 
are rendered to the Hospital, Medical Group shall not receive the Compensation for such Service 
Month. 

3.3 Commercial Reasonableness and Fair Market Value.  The parties have mutually 
agreed, through arm’s length negotiations, that Medical Group’s Compensation hereunder is 
commercially reasonable and reflects the fair market value of the Director Duties to be provided 
by Medical Group pursuant to this Agreement.  Moreover, the parties further acknowledge and 
agree that such Compensation has not been and shall not be determined in a manner that takes into 
account the volume or value of any patient referrals or business otherwise generated between the 
parties or any third parties, including without limitation any referrals or business for which 
payment may be made, in whole or in part, under any federal or state funded health care program. 

3.4 No Billing by Medical Group or any Medical Group physician.  Medical Group 
and Hospital hereby acknowledge and agree that the Compensation shall reflect full and complete 
payment by Hospital for all Director Duties provided hereunder by Medical Group through their 
physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement as the Medical Director pursuant to Article 
II above.  The parties further agree that the Compensation shall not constitute any payments for 
the professional practice of medicine, and Medical Group shall not bill or assert any claim for 
payment against any patient, third party payor, or any other party other than Hospital for Director 
Duties performed by Medical Group physician(s) under this Agreement. 

63 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  4 
    
 

3.5 Independent Contractor.  In the performance of this Agreement, Medical Group 
is acting as an independent contractor, and neither Medical Group nor any physician rendering 
services under this Agreement for Medical Group, shall be considered an employee of the Hospital 
or Facility.  In no event shall this Agreement be construed as establishing a partnership or joint 
venture or similar relationship between the parties, and nothing contained herein shall be construed 
to authorize either party to act as agent for the other.  Medical Group shall be liable for its own 
debts, obligations, acts and omissions, including the payment of all withholding, social security 
and other taxes and benefits.  As an independent contractor, Medical Group is responsible for filing 
such tax returns and for all such employment taxes with respect to Medical Group as may be 
required by law or regulations.  Medical Group, nor any physician rendering services under this 
Agreement for Medical Group shall be subject to any Hospital policies solely applicable to the 
Hospital’s employees, and shall not be eligible for any employee benefit plan offered by Hospital.  
In the event that this independent contractor relationship is determined by tax authorities to 
constitute an employment relationship:  (a) Medical Group hereby waives, for the period prior to 
the date such determination becomes final, any and all claims to coverage under any Hospital 
pension, profit sharing, health, dental, welfare or similar type plans which are generally limited to 
Hospital employees, unless otherwise agreed by Hospital in writing; and (b) Medical Group shall 
reimburse Hospital for any and all sums expended by Hospital related to taxes, employee benefits 
or other employment-related matters (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) with ten (10) days of 
remittance to Medical Group for reimbursement. 

ARTICLE IV 
SUPPORT SERVICES 

4.1 Space and Equipment.  Hospital shall furnish the physical space and equipment 
reasonably required for any physician rendering services under this Agreement for Medical Group 
in order for such physician(s) to carry out the Director Duties hereunder.  Medical Group shall 
cause any physician rendering services under this Agreement to use and occupy any premises of 
Hospital pursuant to this Agreement solely for the purpose of performing such Director Duties.  
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed by the parties to constitute a lease of any 
such premises to Medical Group, and no part of said premises shall be used at any time by Medical 
Group hereunder as an office for the general or private practice of medicine or for any other private 
business concern. 

4.2 In-Service and Supplies.  Hospital shall furnish such ordinary janitor, 
photocopying, telecommunication, computer system, internet access, secretarial, and 
administrative support, electricity for light and power, and other in-services and supplies, all as 
reasonably required for Medical Group to carry out the Director Duties hereunder. 

ARTICLE V 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

5.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
continue for a period of thirty-six (36) months thereafter, unless terminated earlier pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement.   

64 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  5 
    
 

5.2 Termination Without Cause.  Hospital and Medical Group shall each have the 
right to terminate this Agreement, without cause, upon giving not less than thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice to the other party.  

5.3 Termination with Cause.  Hospital shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement upon failure of Medical Group to cure a breach of any term hereof which Hospital, at 
its sole discretion, has given Medical Group an opportunity to cure, within thirty (30) calendar 
days after written notice of said breach and opportunity to cure. 

5.4 Immediate Termination by Hospital.  Notwithstanding Sections 5.2 and 5.3, 
Hospital shall have the right, but not the obligation, to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
notice to Medical Group in the event of the occurrence of any of the following events: 

(a) Medical Group, or any of its physician(s) performing services under this 
Agreement, are excluded, suspended, terminated or otherwise determined to be ineligible from 
participation in any state or federally funded healthcare program (each, a “Government Program 
Exclusion”); 

(b) Any restriction, suspension or revocation of any of Medical Group’s 
physician(s)’ license(s) to practice medicine in any state, without regard to whether such adverse 
action has been fully adjudicated; 

(c) Any restriction, suspension or revocation of any of Medical Group’s 
physician(s)’ medical staff privileges at any health care facility, without regard to whether such 
adverse action had been fully adjudicated; 

(d) Any restriction, suspension or revocation of any of Medical Group’s 
physician(s)’ federal DEA number, without regard to whether such adverse action had been fully 
adjudicated; 

(e) Medical Group, or any physician performing services under this Agreement 
for Medical Group, engages in conduct which is reasonably determined by the Hospital to be 
contrary to the Hospital’s or Facility’s bylaws, rules, regulations, code of conduct or policies or 
procedures, all as may be amended from time-to-time by Hospital or Facility (collectively, 
“Rules”); 

(f) Medical Group, or any physician performing services under this Agreement 
for Medical Group, engages in conduct which is reasonably determined by Hospital to be 
prejudicial or adverse to the best interest, reputation or welfare of Hospital or Facility or its 
patients; 

(g) Medical Group, or any physician performing services under this Agreement 
for Medical Group, is investigated or convicted of a criminal offense relating to health care, or is 
investigated or convicted of any felony or any other crime involving moral turpitude or immoral 
conduct; 

(h) The dissolution of Medical Group, or the death of any physician performing 
services under this Agreement for Medical Group, or the inability of Medical Group to cause any 

65 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  6 
    
 

physician(s) performing services under this Agreement to attend to the Director Duties for a period 
in excess of thirty (30) days, whether consecutive or not, during the term hereof, for any reason 
other than absence approved by Hospital in advance;  

(i) Hospital enters into an agreement for the sale, assignment, lease or other 
transfer of the Hospital or  all or substantially all of Hospital’s assets to another person or entity; 

(j) Hospital suffers an appointment of a receiver, custodian, examiner or a 
trustee for any of its property or assets; or 

(k) Failure of Medical Group to comply with the insurance requirements of 
Section 6.1 of this Agreement. 

5.5 Legal Requirements.  In the event that either party’s legal counsel advises such 
party that this Agreement, or any practices which could be, or are, employed by either party in 
exercising rights or discharging obligations under this Agreement, pose a material risk of violating 
any of the legal requirements imposed on or otherwise governing the performance of this 
Agreement, including without limitation any federal or state anti-kickback or physician self-
referral laws, regulations, or guidelines, such party shall promptly notify the other party of such 
advice.  The parties in good faith shall undertake to revise this Agreement to comply with such 
legal requirements.  In the event that the parties are unable to agree upon the revised terms within 
thirty (30) days after such notice of advice is received by the other party, then either party may 
terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving written notice to the other party. 

5.6 Effect of Termination. 

(a) Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, neither party shall 
have any further obligation hereunder except for:  (i) obligations due and owing which arose prior 
to the date of expiration or termination; and (ii) obligations, promises or covenants contained in 
this Agreement which expressly extend beyond the term hereof. 

(b) Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Medical Group shall 
promptly deliver and return to Hospital all of Hospital’s and/or Facility’s property, including 
without limitation all of Hospital’s or Facility’s supplies, patient records, and all materials, records 
and writings of any type (including all copies thereof) in Medical Group’s possession that 
constitute confidential, proprietary or trade secret information and/or property owned by Hospital 
or Facility. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event of 
any termination of this Agreement effective during the initial twelve (12) months of its term, the 
parties shall not enter into the same or substantially the same arrangement during such initial 
twelve (12) month period; provided, however, the parties shall not be prohibited from renegotiating 
this Agreement if, with the advice of legal counsel, the parties mutually agree that such 
renegotiation is not prohibited by applicable federal or state statutes and regulations, including 
without limitation the federal anti-kickback statute set forth at 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b, the 
federal physician self-referral prohibition set forth at 42 U.S.C. Section 1395nn, or similar state 
laws. 

66 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  7 
    
 

ARTICLE VI 
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

6.1 Insurance.  During the term of this Agreement, Medical Group shall maintain for 
each and every physician Medical Group causes to perform services under this Agreement, at 
Medical Group’s sole expense, professional liability insurance in the minimum amounts of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) annual 
aggregate from a reputable insurance company.  Medical Group agrees to provide proof of such 
coverage upon the reasonable request of Hospital.  Medical Group shall provide Hospital with a 
statement from the insurance company that the Hospital shall be notified at least thirty (30) days 
prior to any change to or cancellation of such insurance coverage.  If the coverage is on a claims-
made basis, Medical Group hereby agrees that not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective 
date of termination by Medical Group of Medical Group’s insurance coverage by Medical Group’s 
current insurance company, Physician shall:  (1) purchase tail or retroactive coverage in the above-
stated amounts for all claims arising out of incidents occurring prior to termination of coverage by 
Medical Group’s current carrier; and (2) provide Hospital with a certificate of such coverage. 

6.2 Indemnification. 

(a) Medical Group shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Hospital and 
Facility, its officers, employees, agents and affiliated entities from and against all losses, expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees, damages, and liabilities of any kind incurred by Hospital or Facility 
(collectively, the “Claims”) resulting from or arising out of Medical Group’s performance 
hereunder, which are caused or claimed to be caused by the negligent or willful acts or omissions 
of Medical Group , its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by them, or any other person or persons under Medical Group’s direction and control; 
provided however, that Medical Group shall not have responsibility to indemnify, protect and hold 
Hospital or Facility harmless from and against any Claim occurring through the negligence of 
Hospital or Facility or any of Hospital’s or Facility’s employees or agents. 

(b) Hospital shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Medical Group, its 
officers, employees, agents and affiliated entities from and against all Claims resulting from or 
arising out of Hospital’s performance hereunder, which are caused or claimed to be caused by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of Hospital, its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, 
or anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or any other person or persons under Hospital’s 
direction and control; provided however, that Hospital shall have no responsibility to indemnify, 
protect and hold Medical Group harmless from and against any Claim occurring through the 
negligence of Medical Group or any of Medical Group’s employees or agents. 

ARTICLE VII 
HOSPITAL AND FACILITY NAMES AND MARKS 

Medical Group shall not use the name, logos, symbols, service marks or trademarks of 
Hospital and/or any facility owned by Hospital (collectively, the “Names and Marks”) without 
the prior written consent of Hospital.  In this regard, the parties mutually acknowledge and agree 
that all right, title and interest in and to any such Names and Marks shall be the exclusive property 

67 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  8

of Hospital.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Medical Group shall 
have no claim whatsoever regarding the use or ownership of any such Names and Marks. 

ARTICLE VIII 
EXCLUSIVITY; RESTRICTIONS 

8.1 Intent.  The parties acknowledge and agree that, in furtherance of Hospital’s 
principal business goals and initiatives, Hospital must assure appropriate and continuous medical 
administrative leadership in Facility with regard to the development and operation of Facility; and, 
in so doing, Hospital must be assured that Medical Group will maintain an active commitment to 
achieving Hospital’s business goals in the performance of this Agreement.  Therefore, during the 
term of this Agreement, Medical group shall be bound by and shall fully comply with the following 
restrictions as set forth in Section 8.2 below. 

8.2 Restrictions. 

(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, during the term of this Agreement, 
Medical Group shall not, without the prior written consent of Hospital, provide similar medical 
administrative or consulting services for or on behalf of any hospital which is or will be in 
competition with Hospital.  Each party specifically acknowledges and agrees that the foregoing 
restrictions are a condition precedent to Hospital’s entering into this Agreement, that such 
restrictions are reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate business interests of Hospital, 
and that such parties would not have entered into this Agreement in the absence of such 
restrictions.  The parties further acknowledge that any violation of this Section 8.2 would result in 
irreparable injury to Hospital and that the remedy at law for monetary compensation resulting from 
any breach of this Section 8.2 would be inadequate.  Accordingly, in the event of any such breach 
by Medical Group, and in addition to any other relief available to it, Hospital shall be entitled to 
temporary injunctive relief against Medical Group, as applicable, before arbitration or trial from 
any court of competent jurisdiction as a matter of course, upon the posting of not more than a 
nominal bond, and to permanent injunctive relief without the necessity of proving actual damages.  
In the event that the provisions contained in this Section 8.2 shall ever be deemed to exceed the 
time or geographic limits or any other limitation permitted by applicable law, then such provisions 
shall be deemed reformed to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law. 

(b) Nothing contained in the foregoing provisions of this Section 8.2 shall be 
construed to control, prohibit or restrict the methods by which Medical Group shall cause its 
physician(s) to perform Director Duties in accordance with or otherwise contemplated under this 
Agreement. 

(c) Nothing contained in the foregoing provisions of this Section 8.2 shall be 
construed to prohibit or otherwise restrict Medical Group, or any physician performing services 
under this Agreement for Medical Group, from referring, admitting or treating patients to or at any 
hospital inpatient or outpatient facility, or otherwise engaging in the private practice of medicine. 

68 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  9

ARTICLE IX 
CONFIDENTIALITY 

9.1 Proprietary Information.  The parties recognize that, due to the nature of this 
Agreement, Medical Group will have access to and knowledge of information of a confidential 
and proprietary nature owned by Hospital or Facility, including without limitation any and all form 
documents, any and all information relating to payor contracts and accounts, billing practices and 
procedures, any and all computer programs devised by or licensed to Hospital or Facility, any and 
all copyrights, inventions and other intellectual property, any and all operating manuals, any and 
all clinical studies and other research, customer and patient lists, and other materials or records 
that constitute or describe the systems, policies and procedures, methods of doing business, 
administrative, advertising or marketing techniques or work product, financial affairs and other 
similar information or property utilized in connection with the operation of Hospital’s or Facility’s 
business (collectively, “Proprietary Information”).  Consequently, Medical Group 
acknowledges and agrees that Hospital has a proprietary interest in all such Proprietary 
Information and that all such Proprietary Information constitutes confidential and proprietary 
information and the trade secret property of Hospital.  Medical Group hereby expressly and 
knowingly waives any and all right, title and interest in and to such trade secrets and proprietary 
and confidential information included in Hospital’s Proprietary Information. 

9.2 Nondisclosure.  During the term of this Agreement, Medical Group shall not use 
or otherwise disclose to anyone, other than authorized persons or entities engaged or employed by 
Hospital with an appropriate need to know, any Proprietary Information obtained from or 
otherwise owned by Hospital, without Hospital’s prior written consent, except as otherwise 
required by law.  After the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, Medical Group shall 
not use or otherwise disclose to anyone any Proprietary Information obtained from or otherwise 
owned by Hospital, without Hospital’s prior written consent, except as otherwise required by law.  
The parties acknowledge and agree that the foregoing covenant is perpetual and shall survive the 
expiration or other termination of this Agreement.  For purposes of this Article IX, Proprietary 
Information shall not include information which is now, or becomes, generally available to the 
public other than by any disclosure made in violation of this Article IX. 

9.3 Confidentiality of Agreement.  The terms of this Agreement are not confidential. 
The Hospital may disclose the terms of this Agreement to the public in order to obtain approval 
from the Hospital’s Board of Directors. 

9.4 Patient Records.  Notwithstanding and in addition to the requirements set forth in 
Article IX above, Medical Group shall maintain and safeguard the confidentiality of all patient 
records, charts and other related patient information, generated in connection with the operation 
of the Program, Hospital, or Facility, in accordance with all applicable federal and state statutes 
and related governmental regulations and with all other legal or contractual requirements imposed 
on Hospital or Facility, or Medical Group in connection therewith.  In this regard, without limiting 
the generality or scope of the foregoing, Medical Group shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), the 
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Public Law 111-005 
(“HITECH Act”), and regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (“HIPAA Regulations”), the California Confidentiality of Medical Information 

69 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  10 
    
 

Act, and other applicable laws, including without limitation state patient privacy laws, as such 
laws may be amended from time to time. Medical Group covenants that neither Medical Group, 
nor any physician rendering services under this Agreement for Medical Group, will copy any 
portion of these records manually, electronically or otherwise, except in the case of medical 
necessity, or with Hospital’s prior written approval.  The foregoing obligations and requirements 
concerning patient confidentiality shall survive the expiration or other termination of this 
Agreement. 

9.5 Injunctive Relief.  Medical Group specifically acknowledges and agrees that the 
restrictions set forth in this Article IX are reasonable and necessary to protect Medical Group’s 
and Facility’s legitimate business interests.  The parties acknowledge that any violation of this 
Article IX would result in irreparable injury to Hospital or Facility, and that the remedy at law for 
monetary compensation resulting from any breach of this Article IX would be inadequate.  
Accordingly, in the event of any such breach by Medical Group, and in addition to any other relief 
available to it, Hospital or Facility shall be entitled to temporary injunctive relief before arbitration 
or trial from any court of competent jurisdiction as a matter of course, upon the posting of not more 
than a nominal bond, and to permanent injunctive relief without the necessity of proving actual 
damages.  Medical Group also acknowledges and agrees that Hospital and Facility shall be entitled 
to an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits and other benefits arising from such breach and 
further agrees to pay the reasonable fees and expenses, including without limitation attorneys’ fees, 
incurred by Hospital or Facility in enforcing the restrictions contained in this Article IX.  In the 
event that the provisions contained in this Article IX shall ever be deemed to exceed any limitation 
permitted by applicable law, then such provisions shall be deemed reformed to the maximum 
extent permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE X 
ACCESS TO BOOKS AND RECORDS 

10.1 Cooperation.  Medical Group shall, in connection with the subject matter of this 
Agreement, cooperate fully with Hospital and Facility, by maintaining and making available all 
necessary books, documents and records, in order to assure that Hospital  and Facility will be able 
to meet all requirements for participation in and payment associated with public or private third-
party payment programs (e.g., the Medicare Program), including, without limitation, matters 
covered by Section 1861(v)(1)(I) of the Social Security Act, as amended. 

10.2 Compliance.  For the purpose of implementing Section 1861(v)(1)(I) of the Social 
Security Act, and any written regulations promulgated thereunder, Medical Group shall comply 
with the following statutory requirements governing the maintenance of documentation to verify 
the cost of services rendered under this Agreement: 

(a) Until the expiration of four (4) years after the furnishing of services 
pursuant to this Agreement, Medical Group shall make available to the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly authorized 
representatives, upon written request of any of them, this Agreement, and all books, documents 
and records that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the cost of such services, and 

70 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  11 
    
 

(b) If Medical Group carries out any of the duties of this Agreement through a 
subcontract with a value or cost of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or more over a twelve (12) 
month period, with a related organization, such subcontract shall contain a clause to the effect that 
until the expiration of ten (10) years after the furnishing of such services pursuant to such 
subcontract, the related organization shall make available, upon written request, to the Secretary 
or the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, the subcontract, and 
books, documents and records of such organization that are necessary to verify the nature and 
extent of such costs. 

10.3 Notification.  If Medical Group is requested to disclose books, documents or 
records pursuant to this Article X, Medical Group shall, unless otherwise constrained by law or 
applicable regulation of any governmental authority, notify Hospital of the nature and scope of 
such request and shall make available, upon the written request of Hospital, all such books, 
documents or records during the regular business hours of Medical Group. 

ARTICLE XI 
ANTI-REFERRAL LAWS 

11.1 No Consideration for Referrals.  Hospital and Medical Group hereby 
acknowledge and agree that: (a) nothing in this Agreement or in any other written or oral agreement 
between Hospital and Medical Group, nor any consideration offered or paid in connection with 
such agreements, contemplates or requires the admission or referral of any patient to the Hospital; 
(b) any such agreements are not intended to influence Medical Group, or any physician(s) 
rendering services under this Agreement for Medical Group, in their judgment of choosing the 
medical facility appropriate for the proper care and treatment of patients of Medical Group, or the 
patients of any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement for Medical Group; and (c) 
the overall value of the services and other consideration exchanged by and between Hospital and 
Medical Group pursuant to this Agreement are substantially equivalent. 

11.2 Specific Laws.  Each party acknowledges, and is hereby bound by, the obligation 
of such party to comply with applicable federal and state laws governing referral of patients, as 
may be in effect or amended from time-to-time, including without limitation: 

(a) Payments for referral or to induce the referral of patients (California 
Business and Professions Code Section 650; California Labor Code Section 3215; and the 
Medicare/Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Law, Section 1128B of the Social Security Act and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder); and 

(b) The referral of patients by a physician for certain designated health services 
to any entity with which the physician (or his/her immediate family) has a financial relationship 
(California Labor Code Sections 139.3 and 139.31, applicable to referrals for workers’ 
compensation services; California Business and Professions Code Sections 650.01 and 650.02, 
applicable to all other patient referrals within the State of California; and Section 1877 of the Social 
Security Act, applicable to referrals of Medicare patients, and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder). 

71 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  12

ARTICLE XII 
ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS 

12.1 Representations and Obligations of Medical Group.  Medical Group represents, 
warrants, and covenants to Hospital that upon execution and throughout the term of this 
Agreement: 

(a) Medical Group shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
related governmental regulations and accrediting standards governing or otherwise concerning any 
and all of Medical Group’s business operations as well as the business operations of Hospital or 
Facility, including without limitation all licensure, reimbursement, anti-kickback and self-referral 
statutes, regulations and standards. 

(b) Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement to verify that he/she has not been excluded from any federal and/or state health care 
payment program by action of the Office of Inspector General of the Department of Health and 
Human Services or by any equivalent or coordinating federal or state governmental agencies.  

(c) Medical Group shall fully comply with all applicable Rules and otherwise 
fully cooperate with Hospital in the performance of this Agreement during the term hereof, 
including without limitation preparing and executing all documents and causing any physician(s) 
rendering services under this Agreement to attend all meetings, as may be reasonably requested 
by Hospital or Facility or otherwise required by applicable law, in connection with the provision 
of Director Duties or for the conduct of the operations of Hospital or Facility. 

(d) Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement to be currently, and for the duration of the term hereof shall remain at all times, duly 
licensed and/or authorized to practice medicine in the State of California, duly qualified to render 
specialized professional medical services in Infectious Disease and Antimicrobial Stewardship and 
in good standing with the Medical Board of California. 

(e) Medical Group shall require any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement to currently become a member in good standing with Hospital’s medical staff. 

(f) Medical Group shall require any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement to have a Federal DEA license without restriction. 

(g) Medical Group shall not permit any physician(s) rendering services under 
this Agreement  to have a license to practice medicine in the State of California or in any other 
jurisdiction that has ever been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished 
under threat of disciplinary action or restricted in any way. 

(h) Medical Group shall ensure that any physician(s) rendering services under 
this Agreement have medical staff privileges at any health care facility which have never been 
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary 
action, or made subject to terms of probation or any other restriction. 

72 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  13 
    
 

(i) Neither Medical Group, nor any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement, is the subject of an investigatory, disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any 
governmental, professional, medical staff or peer review body. 

(j) Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement to be board certified in the specialty of Infectious Disease. 

(k) Medical Group is not in any manner whatsoever breaching any other 
agreement, covenant or obligation, or otherwise violating any statute, regulation or ordinance, by 
entering into this Agreement or otherwise acting as a party or performing hereunder, and that the 
consent of any third party is not required in any manner whatsoever for Medical Group to enter 
into this Agreement and/or act as a party or perform hereunder. 

(l) Medical Group shall ensure that any physician(s) rendering services under 
this Agreement has the leadership abilities to promote a vision of Hospital’s Program and 
Committees. 

(m) Medical Group shall ensure that any physician(s) rendering services under 
this Agreement is knowledgeable and experienced in the area of Infectious Disease and 
Antimicrobial Stewardship with a clear understanding and appreciation of medical integrity and 
ethics. 

(n) Medical Group shall ensure that any physician(s) rendering services under 
this Agreement has sufficient organizational skill to manage and direct a team and provide 
direction to the Program and each Committee. 

(o) Medical Group shall ensure that any physician(s) rendering services under 
this Agreement has sufficient diplomatic skills to coordinate and prioritize competing Program 
initiatives in order to produce broad-based consensus and success. 

12.2 Notification to Hospital or Facility. Upon the occurrence of any event which 
causes any of the above representations set forth in this Article XII to no longer be true, Medical 
Group shall provide written notification to Hospital or Facility within forty-eight (48) hours of 
such event. 

ARTICLE XIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Assignment and Delegation.  Neither this Agreement nor any right or duty 
hereunder may be assigned or delegated by Medical Group without the prior written consent of 
Hospital in its sole discretion.  Any attempted or purported assignment by Medical Group in 
violation of this provision shall be void and without force or effect.  Hospital, in the exercise of its 
sole and absolute discretion, shall have the right at any time, without the consent of Medical Group, 
to assign, delegate or in any manner transfer all or any portion of its interests, obligations or duties 
under this Agreement to any person, group or entity affiliated with Hospital or to any successor-
in-interest which acquires the Hospital or which acquires substantially all of Hospital’s assets. 

73 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  14 
    
 

13.2 Binding on Successor-in-Interest.  The provisions of this Agreement and the 
obligations and interests arising hereunder shall extend to and be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the lawful assigns and successors of the respective parties. 

13.3 Third Party Beneficiary.  None of the provisions contained in this Agreement is 
intended by the parties, nor shall any be deemed, to confer any benefit on any person or entity not 
a party. 

13.4 Notices.  Written notice required under this Agreement shall be given personally 
or sent by United States certified mail, return receipt requested, or by private overnight mail 
service, postage prepaid, and addressed to the parties at addresses shown below (or such other 
address as may hereafter be designated by a party by written notice thereof to the other party).  
Such notice shall be effective upon delivery, if given personally, or if mailed as provided for above 
such notice shall be effective upon the date shown on the delivery receipt. 

HOSPITAL: Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10121 Pine Avenue 
P.O. Box 759 
Truckee, CA 96160 
Attention: Chief Executive Officer 
 

MEDICAL 
GROUP: 

Tahoe Infectious Disease 
Attention: Steven Parker 
75 Pringle Way 705 
Reno, NV 89502 

 

Either party may change its address indicated above by notifying all other parties in writing 
of such change of address in the manner specified in this Section 13.4. 

13.5 Gender and Pronouns.  Whenever appropriate from the context of this Agreement, 
the use of any gender shall include any and all other genders, and the single number shall include 
the plural, and the plural number shall include the singular. 

13.6 Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, void 
or illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity and enforceability of the remaining 
terms and provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and such remaining terms 
and provisions shall continue to be in full force and effect. 

13.7 Governing Law.  The existence, validity, interpretation and performance of this 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California, without reference to its principles of conflict of laws. 

13.8 Entire Agreement; Amendment.  The making, execution and delivery of this 
Agreement by the parties have not been induced by any representations, statements, warranties or 
agreements other than those expressed in this Agreement.  This Agreement, together with any 
attachments or exhibits, embodies the entire understanding of the parties regarding the subject 

74 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  15 
    
 

matter of this Agreement, and there are no further or other agreements or understandings, written 
or oral, in effect between the parties relating to such subject matter.  This Agreement shall 
supersede and terminate any previous oral or written agreements between the parties with respect 
to the subject matter hereof, and any such prior agreements are null and void.  This Agreement 
may be amended or modified only by an instrument in writing signed by all of the parties. 

13.9 Waiver of Provisions.  The failure of a party to insist upon strict adherence to or 
performance of any provision of this Agreement on any occasion shall not be considered a waiver 
nor shall it deprive that party of the right thereafter to enforce performance of or adherence to that 
provision or any other provision of this Agreement.  Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof 
must be in writing, and signed by the parties. 

13.10 Captions and Headings.  Any captions to or headings of the articles, sections, 
subsections, paragraphs or subparagraphs of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the 
parties, are not a part of this Agreement, and shall not be used for the interpretation or 
determination of validity of this Agreement or any provision hereof. 

13.11 Dispute Resolution.   

(a) Informal Resolution Processes.  Any questions or disagreements arising 
under this Agreement regarding the quality of care provided to Hospital patients shall be submitted 
to the Medical Executive Committee of Hospital.  Any other questions or disagreements (other 
than those regarding quality of care) arising under this Agreement, including any questions 
concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, shall be submitted to Hospital’s Chief Executive 
Officer.  If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Chief Executive Officer within ninety (90) days 
of submission, either party may submit the resolution to arbitration pursuant to Section 13.11(b). 

(b) Arbitration.  With the exception of disputes regarding the quality of care, 
which shall be resolved according to the provisions of Section 13.11(a), all disputes relating to, 
arising out of or in connection with the validity, interpretation or performance of this Agreement, 
including tort claims, shall be resolved by arbitration.  The arbitration will proceed in accordance 
with the commercial rules of arbitration of the American Arbitration Association, as supplemented 
or modified by this Agreement.  Written notice of a claim and demand for arbitration must be 
given to the other party (the “Respondent”) not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days 
after the earlier date of (i) the events giving rise to the claim occur or (ii) the date the claim is 
discovered.  Response to the demand for arbitration shall be due not later than twenty (20) days 
after receipt of notice.  The claim will be deemed denied if Respondent does not answer the demand 
within that time period.  Not more than twenty (20) days after Respondent answers the demand (or 
if there is no answer, after the time for answer has elapsed) (the “Answer Date”), the parties shall 
select a single neutral arbitrator.  If the parties cannot agree upon such arbitrator within twenty 
(20) days of the Answer Date, then each party shall choose an arbitrator and the two arbitrators 
together shall select a third arbitrator (the “Arbitrators”) and the matter shall be arbitrated by the 
panel of three Arbitrators.  If the two Arbitrators are unable to agree upon a third Arbitrator prior 
to the thirtieth (30th) day after the Answer Date, then either party may request the American 
Arbitration Association to select the third Arbitrator.  Any Arbitrator selected under this Section 
shall be a person with business, financial or legal experience in the health care industry of at least 
five (5) years, who is generally familiar with the issues in dispute.  The arbitration shall take place 

75 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  16 
    
 

in Truckee, California, or another location mutually agreed upon by the parties.  The Arbitrator(s) 
may construe or interpret but shall not ignore the terms of this Agreement and shall be bound by 
California substantive law.  The arbitration decision shall include written findings of fact and 
conclusions of law.  The arbitration decision may include equitable relief, but may not include 
punitive or exemplary damages.  The Arbitrator(s) shall not have the power to commit errors of 
law or legal reasoning and the Arbitrator’s(s’) decision may be vacated or corrected pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1286.2 or 1286.6 for any such error.  The prevailing 
party, as determined by the Arbitrator(s), shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.  
In cases submitted to arbitration, the parties agree to share equally in the administrative fee, if any, 
unless otherwise assessed against the non-prevailing party by the Arbitrator(s).  The parties agree 
that the decision of the Arbitrator(s) shall be final and binding as to each of them, and that the 
arbitration award may be enforced in any court having jurisdiction thereof, by the filing of a 
petition to enforce said award. 

(c) Equitable Relief.  The foregoing provisions of this Article XIII shall not be 
interpreted in any manner whatsoever to restrict the right of either party to this Agreement to 
pursue equitable relief from a court of competent jurisdiction at any time or to terminate this 
Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof.  In the event that either party wishes to obtain 
injunctive relief or a temporary restraining order from a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
decision of such court with respect to the requested injunctive relief or temporary restraining order 
shall be subject to appeal only as allowed under California law.  Such court shall not, however, 
have the authority to review or grant any request or demand for damages. 

13.12 Venue.  The parties agree that Nevada County, California shall be the only proper 
venue for disputes related to this Agreement. 

13.13 Attorneys’ Fees. Notwithstanding and in addition to the provisions in Article XIII 
above, if legal action is required by either party to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to reimbursement for reasonable costs and 
attorneys’ fees incurred in connection therewith. 

13.14 Survival of Provisions.  The provisions of sections 3.5; 6.1; 6.2; 9.1; 9.2; 9.3; 9.4; 
9.5; 10.1; 10.2; 10.3; 12.1; 13.7, 13.11, 13.12, 13.14, and Article VII hereof shall survive any 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

13.15 Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be liable nor deemed to be in default for any 
delay, interruption or failure in performance under this Agreement that results, directly or 
indirectly, from acts of God, acts of civil or military authority, war, terrorism, accidents, fires, 
explosions, earthquakes, floods, failure of transportation, machinery or supplies, vandalism, riots, 
civil disturbances, strike or other work interruptions by such party’s employees or any similar or 
dissimilar cause beyond the reasonable control of such party.  However, the parties shall make 
good faith efforts to perform under this Agreement in the event of any such circumstances. 

13.16 Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest.  Medical group agrees to adhere to Hospital’s 
conflicts of interest policy, as from time to time in effect, and to disclose to Hospital any matter or 
transaction in which Medical Group is involved that conflicts with the interest of Hospital in 
Medical Group’s satisfactory performance of the services under this Agreement. 

76 of 221



 
 

Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  17 
    
 

13.17 Tax-Exempt Financing.  In the event Hospital intends to seek tax-exempt 
financing, Hospital and Medical Group shall negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement to 
the extent deemed necessary by bond counsel involved in that financing.  If Hospital and Medical 
group do not agree to the terms of such an amendment, Hospital may terminate this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 5.2. 

13.18 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts together shall constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 

  

77 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  18

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, for themselves or by their authorized 
officers, as applicable, have caused this Agreement to be executed effective as of the Effective 
Date set forth hereinabove. 

“Hospital” 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 
a California Hospital District 

By:_________________________________ 
      Jake Dorst, CIO/Interim CEO 

“Medical Group” 
Tahoe Infectious Disease, 

By:__________________________________ 
     Steven Parker , M.D. 

Title: ________________________________ 

Signature is being obtained. Contract will be 
replaced with signed copy once received.

78 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  19

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

MEDICAL DIRECTOR 

Medical Group represents to Hospital that on the basis of the training and experience of 
any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement for Medical Group, Medical Group and 
any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement for Medical Group, are knowledgeable 
in the specialty of Infectious Disease and are qualified to perform and will use their best efforts to 
perform the duties set forth below.  As of and following the Effective Date, Medical Group is 
obligated and shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement to perform 
each calendar month, and as time may reasonably permit, the following specific administrative 
duties and responsibilities as Medical Director with responsibilities that shall include the following 
and other responsibilities which may from time to time be deemed necessary and mutually agreed 
upon by Medical Group and Hospital: 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
 Oversee the Antimicrobial Stewardship Program in compliance with SB1311 and

Sections 1288.8 and 1288.85 of the California Health and Safety Code.
 Provide mentoring and guidance for matters related to the Program to physicians,

pharmacists, Committee members, and Facility staff as needed via tele-conferencing,
tele-medicine consultants, or in-person meetings.

 Recommend pharmacy formulary restrictions and pre-approvals for controlled
antibiotics.

 Develop, implement and support quality improvement, performance improvement and
outcome metrics for Program by developing strategies and advice on outcome metrics
and data gathering.

 Ensure that all best practice recommendations are being carried out and/or followed by
Committees and Program, as applicable.

 Consult with the Pharmacy and Laboratory Services within the Hospital to develop
recommendations on order sets for frequent indications.

 Assist physicians in telephone consultations for matters related to the Program, as
needed.

 Report Program activities to each appropriate Hospital committee undertaking clinical
quality improvement activities.

ADDITIONAL DUTIES 
 Prepare for quarterly assessment of Infection Control Committee and develop plans for

addressing any deficiencies related to the practices currently being performed.
 Attend quarterly meetings for the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and the

Infection Control Committee.
 Conduct, supervise or support the development of corrective action plans and examine

the effectiveness of such corrective action plans stemming from investigations,
examinations and audits related to the applicable Committee(s) or Program, as applicable.

 Manage and maintain working relationships delineated below.

79 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  20

 Represent the Hospital in meetings with federal, state and accrediting bodies related to
the Program as requested by Hospital.

 Investigate and resolve any alleged problems and breaches of Program as well as any
required reporting by the Program to state or federal agencies.

 Report and investigate any adverse events of Program’s conduct.
 Maintain competency and awareness of current scientific developments through prior

training and continued attendance at education programs offered by the federal Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention, the Society for Healthcare Epidemiology of
America, or other similarly recognized professional organizations.

WORKING RELATIONSHIPS 

Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement to maintain 
consistent, professional relationships with: 

 Hospital administration and personnel
 Physicians
 Pharmacists
 Laboratory Services Director
 Facility nursing staff
 Clinical departmental managers throughout the hospital
 Committee members, as applicable

As Medical Director, Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this 
Agreement to maintain a reporting relationship with the Chair of the Pharmacy and Therapeutics 
Committee.   

MAJOR CHALLENGES OF PROGRAM 

Medical Group shall cause any physician(s) rendering services under this Agreement to assist 
Hospital in meeting the following challenges:  

 Ensure adherence to best practices associated with evaluating judicious use of antibiotics
pursuant to CA Health and Safety Code Sections 1288.8 and 12.88.85.

 Ensure compliance with all protocols and related regulation related to antimicrobial
stewardship.

CONSULTATION 

The Medical Director will consult with Physicians, Pharmacists, Laboratory Services Director, 
Committee Members, and other Hospital staff with respect to all decisions materially affecting the 
Program and the Committees.  

/ / / 

80 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  21

SCOPE 
It is expected by the parties that the responsibilities detailed above require an estimated part time 
commitment by Medical Group of ten (10) hours per month, but in no event shall Medical Group 
be compensated for more than one hundred twenty (120) hours per twelve (12) month period. 

81 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  22

EXHIBIT B – MEDICAL DIRECTOR FEE SCHEDULE 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

The Schedule of Fees set forth below shall represent Medical Group’s complete compensation for 
the services rendered under this Agreement.  Any changes to said schedule must be agreed upon 
in writing by both parties and shall be in substantial accordance with fees for comparable services 
in the general service area of Facility. 

Medical Director Fee Schedule 

Two Hundred and Seven Dollars ($207.00) for each hour of service, up to a maximum of One 
Hundred and Twenty (120) hours per Twelve (12) month period.  Fees paid under this Agreement 
shall not exceed Sixteen Thousand, Five Hundred and Sixty Dollars ($24,840.00) per Twelve (12) 
month period for the work actually performed pursuant to this Agreement.  

82 of 221



Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015  23

SERVICE TIME LOG    -   TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

Medical Group Name: Tahoe Infectious Disease 
Contract Name: Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015

Medical Group:  Each month please complete & submit this log for services rendered. Please add more pages to this log if needed to ensure 
all dates, times, services are listed.  If you use a computer/phone application, please attach and sign this log to the documentation generated 
by the program. Thank you.   

Date of Service Description of Services as specified by the contract Hours 

Total time:  _________hours @ $______/hour = Total balance due $________________ 

 Medical Group hereby attests that all of the services listed for the time periods indicated are accurate and that 
there has been no duplication of hours or services. Medical Group declares that the above statement is true and 
accurate to the best of its knowledge.  

Signature for Medical Group:_______________________________________________  Date_________________ 

EXHIBIT C 

83 of 221



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
Board Executive Summary 

 
  By: Rick McConn 
  Chief-Facilities Development 
 
 
   DATE: 07/21/15 
 
 
ISSUE:    
OR Exam Light Replacement project bids recommended to the Board for award. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Bids reviewed were submitted for the light and related booms replacement project for the 4 OR 
rooms.  
  
The attached recommendations for award reflect the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder.  
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Board approval of recommended awards for the light and related booms replacement project 
for the 4 OR rooms as delineated. 
 
 
 
Alternatives: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84 of 221



Tahoe Forest Hospital District
July 28, 2015

Bids Received:

737,499$                     
856,521$                     

13% 95,875$                       
Total 1,689,895$                 

1,689,895$                  TOTAL RECOMMENDED BUDGET 

OR Exam Light Replacement 

RECOMMENDATION FOR AWARD

OR Exam Light Replacement 

Construction
Soft Costs

Contingency/Escalation

July 14, 2015

85 of 221



OR Exam Light Replacement July 28, 2015

Bids Received: July 14, 2015

Element Cost / SF Total Recommended Contractors

1 General Requirements 448,416$                      

2 Sitework/Existing Conditions 6,000$                           

3 Concrete -$                                  

4 Masonry -$                                  

5 Metals 29,801$                        Sparhawk Metals

6 Wood & Plastics -$                                  

7 Thermal & Moisture -$                                  

8 Doors & Windows 3,950$                           

9 Finishes 36,211$                        AJL Painting / Coffey Building Group 

10 Specialties -$                                  

11 Equipment -$                                  

12 Furnishings -$                                  

13 Special Construction -$                                  

14 Conveying Systems -$                                  

21 Fire Suppression -$                                  

22 Plumbing 105,076$                      Intech Mechanical

23 Mechanical 13,845$                        Raglen System 

26 Electrical 94,200$                        Sac Valley Electric

27 Communication -$                                  

Subtotal Construction Hard Costs 737,499$                      

Contingency/Escalation 13% 95,875$                        

Equipment, Furniture, Signage 515,656$                      

Professional Fees 297,250$                      

Administrative Costs 43,615$                        

Total Estimated Construction Cost 1,689,895$                   

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST 1,689,895$                   

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

COST SUMMARY BREAKDOWN

86 of 221



Description Quantity UOM Unit Cost UOM  Total Recommended Contractors

CONSTRUCTION HARD COSTS

01-01000 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

01-01300 Administration Requirements
1301 Drawings / Reproductions 1.00 LS 2000.00 LS 2,000                         

1302 Shipping/Postage 8.00 MO 100.00 MO 800                            

1311 Project Management (1/2 Time) 8.00 MO 10750.00 MO 86,000                       

1311 Project Superintendency (Half Time) 8.00 MO 21500.00 MO 172,000                     

1313 Project Engineer (1/2 Time) 8.00 MO 6450.00 MO 51,600                       

Administration Requirements 312,400                     

01-01500 Temporary Facilities
1516 Cellular Charges 8.00 MO 100.00 MO 800                            

1522 Sanitary Facilities 8.00 MO 108.25 MO 866                            

1532 Miscellaneous Rental 1.00 LS 500.00 LS 500                            

1551 Vehicle Fuel/Maintenance 8.00 MO 450.00 MO 3,600                         

Temporary Facilities 5,766                         

01-01700 Execution Requirements
1743 Disposal/Off-Haul 8.00 MO 450.00 MO 3,600                         

1744 Final Cleaning 4.00 RM 750.00 RM 3,000                         
1761 Protection of Finishes 4.00 EA 1000.00 EA 4,000                         
1761 Infection Control / Temp Barriers / Neg Air / Roof Patch / X-Ray 1.00 LS 10000.00 LS 10,000                       

1761 General Labor  - Infection Control 7.50 MO 14620.00 MO 109,650                     

Execution Requirements 130,250                     

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 448,416                    

02-02000 SITE CONSTRUCTION

02-00000 Site Construction
41 19 Interior Demolition

Demo rooms 1 & 2 / Ceiling 2.00 EA 1500.00 EA 3,000                         

Demo rooms 3 & 4 / Ceiling 2.00 EA 1500.00 EA 3,000                         

Site Construction 6,000                         

SITE CONSTRUCTION 6,000                        

05-05000 METALS

05-05100 Structural Steel Columns 
51 00 Structural Steel Rooms 1 & 2 / Monitor Booms 3.00 EA 4257.29 EA 12,772                       

51 00 Structural Steel 3 & 4 / Monitor Booms 4.00 EA 4257.29 EA 17,029                       

Structural Steel Columns 29,801                       Sparhawk Metals

METALS 29,801                      

08-08000 DOORS AND WINDOWS 

08-08400 Aluminum Doors and Windows 
41 13 Aluminum- Framed Entrance and Storefronts

Temp door and grill 1.00 EA 1550.00 EA 1,550                         
(N) Access door 8.00 EA 300.00 EA 2,400                         
Aluminum Doors and Windows 3,950                         

DOORS, WINDOWS & GLASS 3,950                        

09-09000 FINISHES

09-92000 Gypsum Board Assemblies
22 16 Non Structural Metal Framing

Drywall patch rooms 1 & 2 1.00 LS 14605.50 LS 14,606                       

Drywall patch 3 & 4 1.00 LS 14605.50 LS 14,606                       

Gypsum Board Assemblies 29,211                       Coffey Building 

09-09900 Interior Painting
91 00 Interior Painting at Lid 1.00 LS 7000.00 LS 7,000                         

Interior Painting 7,000                         AJL Painting

FINISHES 36,211                      

TFHD - OR Exam Light Replacement 

Recommendation for Award Estimate                                            

Bids Received:  July 14, 2015

TFHD OR Exam Light Replacement Estimate Comparison JS- 7.16.15.xlsx Geney/Gassiot, Inc. Confidential 3 of 587 of 221



Description Quantity UOM Unit Cost UOM  Total Recommended Contractors

21-00000 FIRE SUPPRESSION

21-0000 Fire Suppression System
05 00.01 Fire Suppression System - Deferred Approval 1.00 LS 0.00 LS -                                

Plumbing -                                

FIRE SUPPRESSION -                                

22-00000 PLUMBING

22-0000 Plumbing
05 00.01 Med Gases

Relocate existing med gases 1.00 LS 105076.00 LS 105,076                     

Plumbing 105,076                     Intech Mechanical

PLUMBING 105,076                    

23-00000 MECHANICAL

23-0000 Mechanical
05 00.01 Test and Balance 1.00 LS 13845.00 LS 13,845                       Raglen

Mechanical 13,845                       -$                                                     

MECHANICAL 13,845                      

26-00000 ELECTRICAL

26-0000 Electrical
05 00.01 Electrical General Requirements

Disconnect/ Safe of existing lights rooms 1 & 2 1.00 LS 94200.00 LS 94,200                       

Reconnect electrical rooms 1 & 2 0.00 EA 2500.00 EA -                                

Disconnect/ Safe of existing lights rooms 3 & 4 0.00 EA 1500.00 EA -                                

Relocate existing conduit 3 & 4 0.00 EA 2500.00 EA -                                

Reconnect electrical rooms 3 & 4 0.00 EA 2500.00 EA -                                

Fire Alarm - Deferred Approval 0.00 LS 0.00 LS -                                -$                                                     
Electrical 94,200                       Sac Valley Electric

ELECTRICAL 94,200                      

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION HARD COSTS 737,499                    -$                                                     

18-00000 PROJECT CONTINGENCY

18-00000 Project Contingency
18 00 Construction Contingency/Escalation 13% PC Const Cost PC 95,875                       

 Project Contingency

PROJECT CONTINGENCY 95,875                      

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS 833,374                    

Total SF                                                 2,816.00          Price per SF 296                           

SOFT COSTS

20-00000 EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE, SIGNAGE

21 00 Equipment, Furniture, Signage
Medical Equipment-Furnish, Install & Commission 1.00 LS 0 LS -                                
IT Equipment/Devices/Conduit & Wiring 1.00 AL 0 AL -                                
Security Devices/Conduit & Wiring 1.00 AL 5,500 AL 5,500                         

20104 Ceiling Mounted ER Lights (Steris) 1.00 LS 500,045 LS 500,045                     

Equipment, Furniture, Signage 505,545                     

21 00 Equipment, Furniture, Signage Contingency
20104 Contingency Escalation 2% PC Eq Cost PC 10,111                       

Equipment, Furniture, Signage Contingency 10,111                       

Equipment, Furniture, Signage 515,656                    

TFHD OR Exam Light Replacement Estimate Comparison JS- 7.16.15.xlsx Geney/Gassiot, Inc. Confidential 4 of 588 of 221



Description Quantity UOM Unit Cost UOM  Total Recommended Contractors

19-00000 PROFESSIONAL FEES

019-0000 Professional Fees
20103 Professional Services - Architect 1.00 LS 53,480 LS 53,480                       

20103 Professional Services - Structural Engineer 1.00 LS 16,725 LS 16,725                       

20103 Professional Services - Mechanical Engineer 1.00 LS 12,000 LS 12,000                       

20103 Professional Services - Electrical Engineer 1.00 LS 12,600 LS 12,600                       

20103 Professional Services - Reimbursable 1.00 LS 7,440 LS 7,440                         

19000 Cost Estimating/Preconstruction Services 1.00 LS 25,000 LS 25,000                       

19000 Public Bid Process 1.00 LS 25,000 LS 25,000                       

19000 Carsten Yearly Analysis 1.00 LS 20,000 LS 20,000                       

19000 Construction Management 0.10 PC 833,374 PC 83,337                       

17003 Testing/Inspections 0.02 PC 833,374 PC 16,667                       

17003 IOR 8.00 MO 3,125 MO 25,000                       

Professional Fees 297,250                     

PROFESSIONAL FEES 297,250                    

17-00000 ADMINISTRATIVE COST

17-00000 Administrative Cost
17003 OSHPD 0.021 PC Const Cost/Cont/Equip PC 28,330                       

17001 General Liability Insurance 0.010 PC Gen Req/CM Fee/Bond PC 5,202                         

17002 Performance/Payment Bonding 0.011 PC Const Cost PC 10,084                       

Administrative Cost 43,615                       

ADMINISTRATIVE COST 43,615                      

TOTAL SOFT COSTS 856,521                    

TOTAL SOFT COSTS 856,521                    

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS 833,374                    

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COST 1,689,895                 

                                                    Total SF                           2816     Price per SF 600.10                      

TFHD OR Exam Light Replacement Estimate Comparison JS- 7.16.15.xlsx Geney/Gassiot, Inc. Confidential 5 of 589 of 221



90 of 221



91 of 221



92 of 221



93 of 221



94 of 221



95 of 221



96 of 221



97 of 221



98 of 221



99 of 221



100 of 221



101 of 221



102 of 221



103 of 221



104 of 221



105 of 221



106 of 221



107 of 221



108 of 221



109 of 221



110 of 221



111 of 221



112 of 221



113 of 221



114 of 221



115 of 221



116 of 221



117 of 221



118 of 221



119 of 221



120 of 221



121 of 221



122 of 221



123 of 221



124 of 221



125 of 221



126 of 221



127 of 221



128 of 221



129 of 221



130 of 221



131 of 221



132 of 221



133 of 221



134 of 221



135 of 221



136 of 221



137 of 221



138 of 221



139 of 221



140 of 221



141 of 221



142 of 221



143 of 221



144 of 221



145 of 221



146 of 221



147 of 221



148 of 221



149 of 221



150 of 221



151 of 221



152 of 221



153 of 221



154 of 221



155 of 221



156 of 221



157 of 221



158 of 221



159 of 221



160 of 221



161 of 221



162 of 221



163 of 221



164 of 221



165 of 221



166 of 221



167 of 221



168 of 221



169 of 221



170 of 221



171 of 221



172 of 221



173 of 221



174 of 221



175 of 221



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 Board Executive Summary 

 
   By: Jim Hook 

Corporate Compliance Consultant, 
The Fox Group 

 
 
   DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
 
ISSUE:   Physicians and Professional Services Policy ABD-21 has had provisions that 
were incomplete or not in concert with the Board of Directors’ instructions to Management 
on the process and content of agreements for professional services rendered by 
physicians and other independent contractors providing professional services. 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Physicians and Professional Services Policy ABD-21 has been previously revised to detail 
the typical compensation arrangements that are permitted to be used in compensation for 
physicians and professional services. 
 
This revision addresses other issues with the policy, including: 

1. Use of agreement templates for all new and renewing agreements; 
2. Process for development, presentation and Board approval of all physician 

compensation agreements. 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
The Compliance Committee has considered and recommends approval of changes to 
Physicians and Professional Services Compensation, Policy/Procedure #ABD 21 These 
changes include: 

1. Process for development and Board approval; 
2. Use of agreement templates for all new and renewing agreements. 

 
 
 
Alternatives: 

1. Do not make changes to the policy as recommended. 
2. Modify the proposed changes to better reflect the direction of the Board. 

 
 
 
 

176 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 1 of 20 

 

TahoeForest Health System 

Title:Physician and Professional 
Service Agreements 

Policy/Procedure #: ABD-XXABD-

21 

Responsible Department: Board of Directors 

Type of policy Original Date: Reviewed Dates: Revision Dates:  

 

 Board 1/90 5/00; 01/12; 1/14 3/08; 01/10; 

02/14; 06/15 

 Medical Staff    

 Departmental    

Applies to:   System TahoeForestHospital InclineVillageCommunityHospital 

PURPOSE:  

This policy is intended to provide the District’s Chief Executive Officer a general framework for 
professional services contracting and recognizes that flexibility may be required due to the 
broad scope of professional services that may be covered.  Further, to insure that the 
professional service provider is meeting the needs of Tahoe Forest Hospital District and the 
community that it serves, as well as allowing the provider to update the actual services 
performed, a formal service review process will be utilized. 

POLICY: 

 Written professional service agreements will be prepared for all physicians and health 
professionals who qualify as independent contractors and who provide diagnostic or therapeutic 
services to Tahoe Forest Hospital District's patients, or who provide certain medico-
administrative duties within a hospital department or service.   

1.0 The following list exemplifies physicians and health professionals who will be covered by 
this policy including but not limited to:  

1.1 Anesthesiologists 
1.2 Medical Directors of specific departments/services, and Medical Staff Officers 
1.3 Physicians providing services in the District’s Medical Services Clinics and 

Cancer Center 
1.4 Physicians serving in medical-administrative roles or on hospital committees  
1.5 Nuclear Medicine Specialists 
1.6 Emergency Services physicians 
1.7 Occupational therapists 
1.8 Pathologists 
1.9 Physical therapists 
1.10 Radiologists 

 
1.11 Speech pathologists 
 Emergency and urgent care providers 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0

pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned

at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0

pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned

at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

177 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 2 of 20 

1.12  
 Mid-level practitioners not employed by the District 
  
 Hospitalists 
 Other contracted physicians 
 Hospitalists 

1.13 Other contracted physicians 

ProceduresPro 
 
2.01.0 All professional service agreements will be developed between the District’s Chief 

Executive Officer and health professionals.   

 New agreements: 

1.1 shall utilize the model agreement for the type of service required from the 
contracting professional (See Exhibit A, attached, for a list of available model 
agreements); and 

1.1.1 New agreements not utilizing the model agreement for the type of service 
required sSshall be reviewed by legal counsel prior to submission to the 
District’s Board of Directors. 

1.1.2 Agreementscommitting over $25,000.00 or more in any given twelve-
month period: 

1.1.2.1 Once agreement is reached between the District’s Chief 
Executive Officer and health professional, CEO will present 
the Contract Routing Fform (or equivalent data summary 
report) with the principal terms and conditions listed, to the 
Board of Directors for their consideration.  Principal terms and 
conditions include, but are not limited to, purpose of 
agreement, agreement term, compensation, scope of duties, 
total cost of contract, and other pertinent information. 

1.1.2.2 Upon their review and consideration, the Board of Directors 
may request specific changes be made to the proposed terms 
and conditions, and revised terms and conditions be submitted 
to the Board at its next scheduled or special meeting. 

1.1.2.3 After approval by the Board of Directors, the CEO will present 
the agreement to the health professional for review and 
signature, indicating his or her acceptance of the included 
terms 

1.1.2.4 In the event the health professional requests changes in the 
principal terms and conditions of the agreement, the CEO will 
present a modified Contract Routing fForm (or equivalent) to 
the Board of Directors 

1.1.2.5 The District’s Chief Executive Officer will place the agreement 
on the agenda of the District Board of Directors for their 
consideration.   

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0

pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned

at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5", Tab stops: Not at 

-1"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0

pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned

at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, 

No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Tab stops: Not

at  -1"

Formatted

Formatted

178 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 3 of 20 

2.11.1.2.6 The professional service agreement will become effective 
following the Board of Directors' ratification, subject to the 
contract term identified in the agreement.   

 New Aagreementsundercommitting less than $25,000Professional 
service agreements committing less thanper twelve-month period$25,000  

2.21.1.3 Pper twelve-month period of District funds can be authorized by 
the District’s Chief Executive Officerwithout Board approval so long as 
funds have been authorized in the District’s operating budget for that 
fiscal year. 

1.2 Renewal agreements: 

1.2.1 All renewing agreements shall utilize the model agreement for the type of 
service required from the contracting professional. 

1.2.1.1 Agreementscommitting over $25,000.00 or more in any given 
twelve-month period: 

2.2.1.1.11.2.1.1.1 Once agreement is reached between the 
District’s Chief Executive Officer and health 
professional, CEO will present the Contract Routing 
Form (or equivalent) with the principal terms and 
conditions listed, to the Board of Directors for their 
consideration. Principal terms and conditions include, 
but are not limited to, purpose of agreement, 
agreement term, compensation, scope of duties, total 
cost of contract, and other pertinent information. 

1.2.1.1.2 Upon their review and consideration, the Board of 
Directors may request specific changes be made to the 
proposed terms and conditions, and revised terms and 
conditions be submitted to the Board at its next 
scheduled or special meeting. 

1.2.1.1.3 After approval by the Board of Directors, the CEO will 
present the agreement to the health professional for 
review and signature, indicating his or her acceptance 
of the included terms 

1.2.1.1.4 In the event the health professional requests changes 
in the principal terms and conditions of the agreement, 
the CEO will present a modified Contract Routing Form 
(or equivaent) to the Board of Directors 

1.2.1.1.5 The District’s Chief Executive Officer will place the 
agreement on the agenda of the District Board of 
Directors for their consideration.   

1.2.1.1.6 The professional service agreement will become 
effective following the Board of Directors' ratification, 
subject to the contract term identified in the agreement.   

 Renewal Aagreementsundercommitting less than $25,000Professional 
service agreements committing less thanper twelve-month period$25,000  

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

179 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 4 of 20 

2.31.2.2 Pper twelve-month period of District funds can be authorized by 
the District’s Chief Executive Officerwithout Board approval so long as 
funds have been authorized in the District’s operating budget for that 
fiscal year. 

1.3 Physician and other professional service agreements due for renewal may be 
held over for up to six months with no change in compensation terms at the 
discretion of the CEO, and in accordance with Stark Law and OIG regulations. 

1.4 Urgent Services: 

1.4.1 At the discretion of the CEO, an agreement required for urgent services 
may be presented directly to the Board of Directors.s 

1.4.1.1 All terms and condition must be included at theis time of 
presentation.in lieu of presenting the terms and conditions 
prior to presentation to the health professional.  

1.4.1.2 The signature of the health professional will be required on 
such agreementsat the time of presentation to the Board. 

1.1.1.  

1.2.  

1.3. All renewing agreements shall utilize the model agreement for the type of service 
required from the contracting professional. 

1.4. Once agreement is reached between the District’s Chief Executive Officer and health 
professional, for professional service agreements committing $25,000 or more per twelve month 
period, the CEO will present the Contract Routing form with the principal terms and conditions 
listed, to the Board of Directors for their consideration.  

1.4.1. At the discretion of the CEO, an agreement required for urgent services may be 
presented directly to the Board of Directors in lieu of presenting the terms and conditions prior to 
presentation to the health professional.  The signature of the health professional will be required 
on such agreementsat the time of presentation to the Board. 

1.5. After approval by the Board of Directors, the CEO will present the agreement to the 
health professional for review and signature, indicating his or her acceptance of the included 
terms. 

1.6. In the event the health professional requests changes in the principal terms and 
conditions of the agreement, the CEO will present a modified Contract Routing form to 
the Board of Directors. 
1.7. The District’s Chief Executive Officer will place the agreement on the agenda of the 
District Board of Directors for their consideration.  The professional service agreement will 
become effective following the Board of Directors' ratification, subject to the contract term 
identified in the agreement.  

1.8. Professional service agreements committing less than $25,000 per twelve-month 
period of District funds can be authorized by the District’s Chief Executive Officerwithout 
Board approval so long as funds have been authorized in the District’s operating budget 
for that fiscal year. 

1.9. Physician and other professional service agreements due for renewal may be 
held over for up to six months with no change in compensation terms at the 
discretion of the CEO, and in accordance with Stark Law and OIG regulations. 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 

1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 4 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Tab after:

 2.25" + Indent at:  2.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.44",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Bold,

Underline

Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, 

No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Bold,

Underline

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering, Tab

stops:  0.52", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

180 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 5 of 20 

2.1.5 All physician and professional service agreements will be processed by the Chief 
Executive Officer’s administrative staff.  The following guidelines will be utilized: 

2.1.1.5.1 Material for agreements will be presented to the Chief Executive 
Officer’s administrative staff in a timely manner to ensure that adequate 
time is available for preparation of the agreement within the required 
timeframes for timely execution and implementation. to ensure that 
adequate time is available for the preparation of the agreement within 
required timeframes including the completion of a Contract Approval form; 

1.5.2 Content and negotiations with health service professionals will remain 
thethe responsibility of the Admin Council members. 

2.0 Compensation under Professional Service Agreements With Physicians Only. 

 In all cases, agreement will specify the financial arrangements related to the 
provision of physician professional services.  The following methodologies may be 
utilized: 
2.1 Hourly rates.  Hourly rates are the preferred compensation method for 

administrative duties such as medical directorships, medical staff leadership 
positions, or committee attendance.   Hourly rates or “per shift” rates with hours 
of coverage and response time specified are the preferred compensation method 
for on-call and hospitalist coverage. 

2.1.1 Physicians shall be required to document the date, hours spent, and a 
description of work completed for all administrative duties. 

2.1.2 On call calendars maintained by the medical staff office may be utilized 
as documentation for on-call and hospitalist agreements. 

2.1.3 MSC physicians may receive RVU credit for administrative duties in lieu 
of cash compensation. 

2.2 Base compensation plus bonus.  Payment of a fixed base compensation plus 
bonus is the preferred compensation method for multi-specialty clinic (MSC) 
physicians who are working more than half time.   A consistent model for the 
compensation of MSC physicians shall be utilized, which may be subject to 
modification annually. 

2.2.1 Management shall endeavor to create a model that is aligned with the 
following organizational goals, recognizing that simultaneous 
achievement of all goals may not be possible in all cases; however the 
first of these goals (paying within fair market value) cannot be 
compromised in any circumstance. 

2.2.1.1 Pay within constraints of fair market value  

2.2.1.2 Maintain internal equity within and between specialties 

2.2.1.3 Provide sufficient compensation to recruit and retain 
physicians 

2.2.1.4 Encourage quality and productivity 

2.2.1.5 Be Clear and understandable to all parties 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 

1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold, No

underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", Hanging: 

0.75"

181 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 6 of 20 

2.2.2 Base compensation shall be established based on an agreed upon 
percentage of the median compensation from one or more published 
compensation surveys, adjusted for the physician’s FTE status. 

2.2.2.1 FTE status shall be based on agreed number of days of work 
and/or hours of clinical availability, which may vary by 
specialty but which shall be consistent within each specialty. 

2.2.2.2 The survey to be utilized shall be the annual MGMA Physician 
Compensation and Production Survey. 

2.2.2.3 The Western Region median shall be utilized.   

2.2.2.4 Data shall be smoothed by utilizing a 3-year average of the 
median from the three most recently published surveys. 

2.2.2.5 In the event that, in management’s professional opinion, the 
data from the MGMA survey in the Western Region is 
unreliable due to the low number of respondents or other 
factors, management may utilize the national median and/or 
data from other published surveys. 

2.2.2.6 Survey data shall be adjusted for inflation that has occurred 
since the data was collected. 

2.2.2.7 The percentage of median may be adjusted based on the 
physician’s historic productivity, years of experience, special 
expertise, or the difficulty of recruiting a particular specialty to 
the area.   However: 

2.2.2.7.1 In no case shall the percentage of median 
compensation paid as base compensation (before 
FTE adjustment) fall below 70% nor shall it exceed 
130% of the median. 

2.2.2.7.2 In no case shall a physician’s base compensation 
be decreased relative to the prior year unless 
either: 

2.2.2.7.3 Physician’s FTE status has changed 

2.2.2.7.4 Physician’s prior year productivity has fallen below 
90% of the prior year’s target, and physician failed 
to reach this productivity level due to factors that 
are under the physician’s control, such as leaving 
early or taking excessive time off.  Determination of 
the reasons for any such failure shall be reviewed 
by a panel that includes the Executive Director (or 
designee), the Medical Director and at least one 
other physician. 

2.2.3 The costs of malpractice insurance and benefits that are borne by the 
physicians shall be considered based on such reasonable methodology 
as may be developed by management, which may include but is not 
limited to: 

2.2.3.1 Adding the estimated costs of malpractice insurance, health 
insurance, retirement benefits, employer-paid payroll taxes, 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", Hanging: 

0.75"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.75", Tab

stops:  3", List tab + Not at  2.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.25", Hanging: 

0.5", Tab stops:  3", List tab + Not at  2.75"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.75", Tab

stops:  3", List tab + Not at  2.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", Hanging: 

0.75"

182 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 7 of 20 

and other benefits that are customarily paid by organizations 
with the ability to employ physicians. 

2.2.3.2 Reducing the WRVU target by an amount that would enable 
physicians to earn all or a portion of those costs by reaching a 
production level that is commensurate with their 
compensation. 

2.2.4 Physician contracts may include a production and/or quality incentive, to 
encourage physicians to work to their full capacity, provided: 

2.2.4.1 Productivity is measured in Work Relative Value Units 
(WRVUs), unless physician works in a specialty for which 
WRVU benchmark data is either unavailable or insufficient, in 
which case an alternate measure such as visits may be 
utilized.   

2.2.4.2 The production incentive is in no way tied to referrals or to use 
of Tahoe Forest Hospital facilities. 

2.2.4.3 The production target is set based on the same survey 
benchmarks utilized for compensation, and is set at a level 
that is proportionate to base salary. 

2.2.4.4 Quality incentives, if any, are measurable and linked to factors 
that are within the physician’s control. 

2.2.4.5 The total projected compensation, including incentives, does 
not exceed fair market value. 

2.3 Rate per Work Relative Value Unit (WRVU).  Payment at a set rate per Work 
Relative Value Unit (WRVU) is the preferred compensation method for multi-
specialty clinic (MSC) physicians who are working less than half time. 

2.3.1 The rate per RVU shall be based on the same compensation and 
production survey data that is utilized for physicians working half time or 
more, and may include an allowance for malpractice and benefits. 

2.4 Percentage of professional fee collections. Payment based on a percentage of 
professional fees collected may be utilized for physicians who are not part of the 
MSC in those instances where the District accepts responsibility for billing and 
collecting from the patient or any third party payer for professional services and is 
able to separately bill for professional service fees. 

2.4.1 Remuneration based upon a percentage of combined facility and 
professional gross charges or collections is prohibited. 

2.4.2 The District will remit the amounts collected, depending upon the 
agreement, to the physician, deducting a percentage to account for the 
estimated expenses of the District’s billing and collection services and 
other administrative and support services, if provided.   

2.4.3 If the payment to the healthcare provider is based upon billings rather 
than collections, a further percentage will be deducted so to account for 
the estimated incidents of bad debts and contractual allowances.  
Furthermore, if the payment to the healthcare provider is based upon 
billings rather than collections, a revenue collection analysis will be 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", Hanging: 

0.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.5"

183 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 8 of 20 

performed at least annually to ensure compliance to the above 
compensation provision. 

2.4.4 All professional fee schedules shall be made a part of the agreement and 
appropriately referenced.  Professional fee schedules may be revised 
annually.  Any changes to the professional fee schedule must be 
discussed between the District Chief Executive Officer and requesting 
physician prior to becoming effective.  Requests shall conform to the 
following criteria: 

2.4.4.1 Should provide sufficient detail to fully describe the professional 
services, relevant code numbers and professional fees;  

2.4.4.2 All professional fees shall be reasonable and customary and 
comparable to professional fees charged by their peers within our 
region.  The mechanism for determining compliance to this 
criteria will be determined on a case by case basis between the 
professional provider and District Chief Executive Officer. 

2.4.4.3 Other relevant information should also be provided, e.g., changes 
required as a result of regulatory mandates; requests from 
individual physicians and Medical Staff; new service charges or 
extraordinary changes in provider costs not previously 
anticipated. 

2.4.4.4 Written agreement reflecting mutual acceptance of the proposed 
revisions as meeting the above criteria shall be required prior to 
the changes becoming effective. 

2.5 Payment per service.Payment at a specified rate per service is the preferred 
method for limited scope agreements in which the physician is providing clearly 
delineated clinical services.  Examples include EKG interpretations, audiology 
reviews, and other services that are billed on a global basis by the hospital. 

2.6 Specialty call activation fee.In specialties where a regular on-call panel is either 
infeasible due to the number of physicians on the medical staff within that 
specialty or the low incidence of emergency need for that specialty, a specialty 
activation fee may be offered in the event that physician is called in to respond to 
an emergency. 

2.7 Fair Market Value.In all cases, physician’s compensation must be within fair 
market value and must be determined to be commercially reasonable. 

2.7.1 Fair market value for any individual contract shall generally be defined as 
an amount equal to or less than the 75th percentile of compensation, 
considering the physician’s FTE status and production levels. 

2.7.2 However management shall endeavor to design a compensation model 
that maintains the average physician’s compensation within +/- 10% of 
the median (or between the 40th and 60th percentiles?). 

3.0 Multiple agreements   

3.1 Nothing in this policy shall prohibit the hospital from entering into multiple 
agreements with physicians; provided however that the designated hours of 
service are clearly segregated. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"

Formatted

Formatted: No underline

Formatted

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

184 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 9 of 20 

3.1.1 Physicians whose MSC duties are typically during regular Monday 
through Friday daytime hours may be paid for on-call coverage during 
evenings, weekends, and scheduled days off and/or for administrative 
duties performed during lunch or after regular clinic hours. 

3.1.2 MSC physicians who provide hospitalist, on-call, or administrative 
services during normal scheduled clinic time shall receive WRVU credit in 
lieu of cash payment. 

3.1.3 The physician may perform administrative duties while on call, as long as 
clinical duties are not needed.  If the physician is need for clinical duties, 
they must not bill administrative time when performing clinical duties. 

4.0 Physician Qualifications:   

4.1 Professional service agreements with physicians shall require: 

4.1.1 A valid and unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state issued by 
the applicable state Medical Board; 

4.1.2 All appropriate certifications, registrations and approvals from the Federal 
Drug Enforcement Administration and any other applicable federal or 
state agency necessary to prescribe and dispense drugs under applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations, in each case without restriction; 

4.1.3 Prompt disclosure of  the commencement or pendency of any action, 
proceeding, investigation or disciplinary proceeding against or involving 
Physician, including, without limitation, any medical staff investigation or 
disciplinary action; 

4.1.4 Prompt written notice of any threat, claim or legal proceeding against 
TFHD that Physician becomes aware of, and cooperate with TFHD in the 
defense of any such threat, claim or proceeding and enforcing the rights 
(including rights of contribution or indemnity) that TFHD may have against 
other parties or through its insurance policies; 

4.1.5 No discrimination against a patient based on race, creed, national origin, 
gender, sexual orientation, disability (including, without limitation, the 
condition(s) for which the patient seeks professional services from 
Physician), ability to pay or payment source. 

4.2 Physician Qualifications In Coordination With Medical Staff Bylaws:   

4.2.1 Professional service agreements with physicians shall requiretheir 
membership on the District’s Medical Staff with appropriate privileges 
pertinent to the duties and responsibilities described by the professional 
service agreement.   

4.2.2 Termination of the agreement will cause the physician to lose the "right" 
to provide the services which are described in the agreement.  However, 
this would not mean that the physician would lose his Medical Staff 
membership and privileges; he/she would simply lose the right to gain 
access to the service or department which is the subject of the exclusive 
agreement. 

4.3 Contract Termination Clause 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"

Formatted

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: No underline

Formatted

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

185 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 10 of 20 

4.3.1 :In all cases, professional service agreements shall provide for a 
termination clause which allows for termination by either party without 
cause upon prior written notice.   

4.3.2 The following language will be utilized: “For cause” termination of a 
physician contract during the first year of its term; “No cause” termination 
following the first year of its term.   

4.3.2.1 The timeframe for prior written notice may range from 60-180 
days.  Further, termination of the agreement does not afford 
the physician the right to request a medical staff hearing or 
any other review pursuant to the Medical Staff By-Laws. 

2.2. responsibility of the Admin Council members. 

3. The following Section I describes general provisions which apply, and should be 
included, in all professional service agreements.  Sections2 and 3 describe 
provisions which apply to professional service agreements with physicians and 
non-physicians respectively.  It is the Board of Director’s policy that these 
provisions be addressed by all professional service agreements.  Section 4 
describes the procedure for physician and professional service agreement 
contract and service review.  

 
PROCEDURE: 
4. General Provisions:  Physician and Non-Physician Professional Service 
Agreements 

4.1. Professional Service Duties and Responsibilities:  Each agreement will include a 
detailed and specific delineation of the duties and responsibilities to be performed by the health 
professional as well as the District.  For example, extensive detail will be provided regarding: 

4.1.1. Diagnostic and therapeutic services to be provided 

4.1.2. Medico-administrative services to be provided 

4.1.3. Coverage obligations to be assumed  

4.1.4. The rights and obligations of the District and the health professional with regard to 
providing space, equipment, supplies, personnel and technicians. 

4.2. Standards Of Practice:  Each agreement shall specify that the health professional will 
provide the service in accordance with the Hospital Bylaws; Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, and standards established by the Executive Committee of the Medical Staff; with 
the ethical and professional standardsof the American Medical Association and the California 
and/or Nevada Medical Association; the standards of the Healthcare Facilities Accreditation 
Program (HFAP) and in any applicable specialty college or society or governmental regulation. 

4.3. Medicare and Medicaid Enrollment:  Each agreement shall specify that the health 
professional is duly enrolled in the federal Medicare program and the applicable State Medicaid 
program and eligible to seek reimbursement under such programs for covered services 
rendered by the provider to beneficiaries of such programs.  Every agreement must contain a 
provision in which the health professional agrees to notify TFHS in the event participation 
terminates.   

4.4. Quality Assessment:  Professional service agreements shall require the health 
professional to participate in the Health System,Quality Improvement Program to ensure that 

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

186 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 11 of 20 

the quality, safety and appropriateness of healthcare services are monitored and evaluated and 
that appropriate actions based on findings are taken to promote quality patient care.  
Furthermore, each agreement shall specify a process designed to assure that all individuals 
who provide patient care services under service agreements, but who are not subject to the 
Medical Staff privilege delineation process, are competent to provide such services.  Whenever 
possible, information from customer satisfaction surveys shall be incorporated into the Quality 
Improvement Program for said service.  Agreements which provide for Directorship 
responsibilities over a department or service shall require the health professional "Director" to 
be responsible for implementing a monitoring and evaluation process designed to improve 
patient care outcomes and which is integrated with the Health SystemQuality 
ImprovementProgram.  

4.5. Assignability:  It is desirable that all professional service agreements be non-assignable 
unless important to the successful negotiation of a contract where higher priority objectives may 
be achieved.  Where assignability becomes necessary, assignability shall be allowed only with 
the condition that prior written consent of the Board of Directors be obtained. 

4.6. Contract Term:  Professional service agreements shall specify a specific term and 
termination date (i.e., not automatically renewable for successive years).  In considering the 
term of the agreement, the termination date of related agreements should be considered by the 
District Chief Executive Officer so as to minimize the likelihood of multiple agreements coming 
due on the same date or year.  The length of the term shall be negotiable.  Professional service 
contracts will typically range from one to four years in duration. 

4.7. Professional Liability:  In all cases, the health professional will be responsible for 
providing adequate professional liability insurance coverage at the health professional's 
expense.  Limits of coverage for physicians will be a minimum of $l,000,000 per occurrence, 
$3,000,000 aggregate.  For non-physicians, the minimum limits of coverage may vary 
depending on the standard established for that health profession.  The agreement shall also 
specify that the contracting health professional will, in turn, either require or arrange for 
professional liability insurance coverage for all sub-contracting health professionals.  
Furthermore, the professional liability insurance policy must be obtained from a professional 
liability insurer which is authorized to transact the business of insurance in the State of 
California (or Nevada in the case of professional services provided at the District’s Community 
Hospital in Incline Village, Nevada).  Also, the professional services agreement must require 
that the selected insurer will be responsible for notifying the District of any cancellation or 
reduction in coverage within thirty days of said action. 

4.8. Regulatory Compliance:  The agreement should include provisions in which both the 
District and the health professional commit to full compliance with all federal, state, and local 
laws. The contracting party should agree to keep confidential any financial, operating, 
proprietary, or business information relating to the District and to keep confidential, and to take 
the usual precautions to prevent the unauthorized use and disclosure of any and all Protected 
Health Information.  The agreement should include provisions for amendment to the agreement 
in furtherance of maintaining compliance in the event of the adoption of subsequent legislation 
and/or regulations. 

4.9. Recitals:  Exclusive professional service agreements should include a carefully 
developed description of the rationales for exclusivity in a particular clinical service or 
department. Furthermore, if the agreement does assign exclusive responsibility for a particular 
service, it should state so expressly not leaving this to inference or interpretation. 

4.10. Professional Relationships:  The agreement should specify that the health professional 
is an independent contractor and is not an employee of the District. 

187 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 12 of 20 

4.11. Government Audit:  The agreement should include the standard provision recognizing 
that the agreement and certain other materials will be subject to audit and inspection by certain 
federal authorities with regard to payments made for Medicare services. 

4.12. Standard Contractual Language:  The agreement should include certain standard 
provisions to theeffect that the provisions of the contract are severable and, therefore, the ruling 
that any one of them is void does not invalidate the entire agreement, and that the waiver of 
breach of one provision does not constitute a continuing waiver, and that the written agreement 
constitutes the entire contract between the parties. 

4.13. Managed Care:The physician or health professional agrees to participate as a preferred 
provider with all of the managed healthcare plans (PPOs and HMOs) that the District has 
agreements with including agreements with insurance companies, health maintenance 
organizations and direct contracting with self-funded employers.  Any deviation of this policy 
must be approved by District Administration and the Board of Directors. 

5. Compensation under Professional Service Agreements With Physicians Only.In all 
cases, the contract will specify the financial arrangements related to the provision of physician 
professional services.  The following methodologies may be utilized: 
5.1. Hourly rates.  Hourly rates are the preferred compensation method for administrative 
duties such as medical directorships, medical staff leadership positions, or committee 
attendance.   Hourly rates or “per shift” rates with hours of coverage and response time 
specified are the preferred compensation method for on-call and hospitalist coverage. 

5.1.1. Physicians shall be required to document the date, hours spent, and a description of 
work completed for all administrative duties. 

5.1.2. On call calendars maintained by the medical staff office may be utilized as 
documentation for on-call and hospitalist agreements. 

5.1.3. MSC physicians may receive RVU credit for administrative duties in lieu of cash 
compensation. 

5.2. Base compensation plus bonus.  Payment of a fixed base compensation plus bonus is 
the preferred compensation method for multi-specialty clinic (MSC) physicians who are working 
more than half time.   A consistent model for the compensation of MSC physicians shall be 
utilized, which may be subject to modification annually. 

5.2.1. Management shall endeavor to create a model that is aligned with the following 
organizational goals, recognizing that simultaneous achievement of all goals may not be 
possible in all cases; however the first of these goals (paying within fair market value) cannot be 
compromised in any circumstance. 

5.2.1.1. Pay within constraints of fair market value  

5.2.1.2. Maintain internal equity within and between specialties 

5.2.1.3. Provide sufficient compensation to recruit and retain physicians 

5.2.1.4. Encourage quality and productivity 

5.2.1.5. Be Clear and understandable to all parties 

5.2.2. Base compensation shall be established based on an agreed upon percentage of the 
median compensation from one or more published compensation surveys, adjusted for the 
physician’s FTE status. 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

188 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 13 of 20 

5.2.2.1. FTE status shall be based on agreed number of days of work and/or hours of 
clinical availability, which may vary by specialty but which shall be consistent within each 
specialty. 

5.2.2.2. The survey to be utilized shall be the MGMA Physician Compensation and 
Production Survey. 

5.2.2.3. The Western Region median shall be utilized.   

5.2.2.4. Data shall be smoothed by utilizing a 3-year average of the median from the 3 
most recently published surveys. 

5.2.2.5. In the event that, in management’s professional opinion, the data from the 
MGMA survey in the Western Region is unreliable due to the low number of respondents or 
other factors, management may utilize the national median and/or data from other published 
surveys. 

5.2.2.6. Survey data shall be adjusted for inflation that has occurred since the data was 
collected. 

5.2.2.7. The percentage of median may be adjusted based on the physician’s historic 
productivity, years of experience, special expertise, or the difficulty of recruiting a particular 
specialty to the area.   However: 

5.2.2.7.1. In no case shall the percentage of median compensation paid as base 
compensation (before FTE adjustment) fall below 70% nor shall it exceed 130% of the median. 

5.2.2.7.2. In no case shall a physician’s base compensation be decreased relative to the 
prior year unless either: 

5.2.2.7.3. Physician’s FTE status has changed 

5.2.2.7.4. Physician’s prior year productivity has fallen below 90% of the prior year’s target, 
and physician failed to reach this productivity level due to factors that are under the physician’s 
control, such as leaving early or taking excessive time off.  Determination of the reasons for any 
such failure shall be reviewed by a panel that includes the Executive Director (or designee), the 
Medical Director and at least one other physician. 

5.2.3. The costs of malpractice insurance and benefits that are borne by the physicians shall 
be considered based on such reasonable methodology as may be developed by management, 
which may include but is not limited to: 

5.2.3.1. Adding the estimated costs of malpractice insurance, health insurance, 
retirement benefits, employer-paid payroll taxes, and other benefits that are customarily paid by 
organizations with the ability to employ physicians. 

5.2.3.2. Reducing the WRVU target by an amount that would enable physicians to earn 
all or a portion of those costs by reaching a production level that is commensurate with their 
compensation. 

5.2.4. Physician contracts may include a production and/or quality incentive, to encourage 
physicians to work to their full capacity, provided: 

5.2.4.1. Productivity is measured in Work Relative Value Units (WRVUs), unless 
physician works in a specialty for which WRVU benchmark data is either unavailable or 
insufficient, in which case an alternate measure such as visits may be utilized.   

5.2.4.2. The production incentive is in no way tied to referrals or to use of Tahoe Forest 
Hospital facilities. 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

189 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 14 of 20 

5.2.4.3. The production target is set based on the same survey benchmarks utilized for 
compensation, and is set at a level that is proportionate to base salary. 

5.2.4.4. Quality incentives, if any, are measurable and linked to factors that are within the 
physician’s control. 

5.2.4.5. The total projected compensation, including incentives, does not exceed fair 
market value. 

5.3. Rate per Work Relative Value Unit (WRVU).  Payment at a set rate per Work Relative 
Value Unit (WRVU) is the preferred compensation method for multi-specialty clinic (MSC) 
physicians who are working less than half time. 

5.3.1. The rate per RVU shall be based on the same compensation and production survey data 
that is utilized for physicians working half time or more, and may include an allowance for 
malpractice and benefits. 

5.4. Percentage of professional fee collections. Payment based on a percentage of 
professional fees collected may be utilized for physicians who are not part of the MSC in those 
instances where the District accepts responsibility for billing and collecting from the patient or 
any third party payer for professional services and is able to separately bill for professional 
service fees. 

5.4.1. Remuneration based upon a percentage of combined facility and professional gross 
charges or collections is prohibited. 

5.4.2. The District will remit the amounts collected, depending upon the agreement, to the 
physician, deducting a percentage to account for the estimated expenses of the District’s billing 
and collection services and other administrative and support services, if provided.   

5.4.3. If the payment to the healthcare provider is based upon billings rather than collections, a 
further percentage will be deducted so to account for the estimated incidents of bad debts and 
contractual allowances.  Furthermore, if the payment to the healthcare provider is based upon 
billings rather than collections, a revenue collection analysis will be performed at least annually 
to ensure compliance to the above compensation provision. 

5.4.4. All professional fee schedules shall be made a part of the agreement and appropriately 
referenced.  Professional fee schedules may be revised annually.  Any changes to the 
professional fee schedule must be discussed between the District Chief Executive Officer and 
requesting physician prior to becoming effective.  Requests shall conform to the following 
criteria: 

5.4.4.1. Should provide sufficient detail to fully describe the professional services, 
relevant code numbers and professional fees;  

5.4.4.2. All professional fees shall be reasonable and customary and comparable to 
professional fees charged by their peers within our region.  The mechanism for determining 
compliance to this criteria will be determined on a case by case basis between the professional 
provider and District Chief Executive Officer. 

5.4.4.3. Other relevant information should also be provided, e.g., changes required as a 
result of regulatory mandates; requests from individual physicians and Medical Staff; new 
service charges or extraordinary changes in provider costs not previously anticipated. 

5.4.4.4. Written agreement reflecting mutual acceptance of the proposed revisions as 
meeting the above criteria shall be required prior to the changes becoming effective. 

190 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 15 of 20 

5.5. Payment per service.Payment at a specified rate per service is the preferred method for 
limited scope agreements in which the physician is providing clearly delineated clinical services.  
Examples include EKG interpretations, audiology reviews, and other services that are billed on 
a global basis by the hospital. 

5.6. Specialty call activation fee.In specialties where a regular on-call panel is either 
infeasible due to the number of physicians on the medical staff within that specialty or the low 
incidence of emergency need for that specialty, a specialty activation fee may be offered in the 
event that physician is called in to respond to an emergency. 

5.7. Fair Market Value.In all cases, physician’s compensation must be within fair market 
value and must be determined to be commercially reasonable. 

5.7.1. Fair market value for any individual contract shall generally be defined as an amount 
equal to or less than the 75th percentile of compensation, considering the physician’s FTE 
status and production levels. 

5.7.2. However management shall endeavor to design a compensation model that maintains 
the average physician’s compensation within +/- 10% of the median (or between the 40th and 
60th percentiles?). 

5.8. Multiple agreements.  Nothing in this policy shall prohibit the hospital from entering into 
multiple agreements with physicians; provided however that the designated hours of service are 
clearly segregated. 

5.8.1. Physicians whose MSC duties are typically during regular Monday through Friday 
daytime hours may be paid for on-call coverage during evenings, weekends, and scheduled 
days off and/or for administrative duties performed during lunch or after regular clinic hours. 

5.8.2. MSC physicians who provide hospitalist, on-call, or administrative services during 
normal scheduled clinic time shall receive WRVU credit in lieu of cash payment. 

5.8.3. The physician may perform administrative duties while on call, as long as clinical duties 
are not needed.  If the physician is need for clinical duties, they must not bill administrative time 
when performing clinical duties. 

5.9. Physician Qualifications:  Professional service agreements with physicians shall require: 

5.9.1. A valid and unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state issued by the applicable 
state Medical Board; 

5.9.2. All appropriate certifications, registrations and approvals from the Federal Drug 
Enforcement Administration and any other applicable federal or state agency necessary to 
prescribe and dispense drugs under applicable federal and state laws and regulations, in each 
case without restriction; 

5.9.3. Prompt disclosure of  the commencement or pendency of any action, proceeding, 
investigation or disciplinary proceeding against or involving Physician, including, without 
limitation, any medical staff investigation or disciplinary action; 

5.9.4. Prompt written notice of any threat, claim or legal proceeding against TFHD that 
Physician becomes aware of, and cooperate with TFHD in the defense of any such threat, claim 
or proceeding and enforcing the rights (including rights of contribution or indemnity) that TFHD 
may have against other parties or through its insurance policies; 

5.9.5. No discrimination against a patient based on race, creed, national origin, gender, sexual 
orientation, disability (including, without limitation, the condition(s) for which the patient seeks 
professional services from Physician), ability to pay or payment source. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

191 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 16 of 20 

5.10. Physician Qualifications In Coordination With Medical Staff Bylaws:  Professional service 
agreements with physicians shall requiretheir membership on the District’s Medical Staff with 
appropriate privileges pertinent to the duties and responsibilities described by the professional 
service agreement.  Termination of the agreement will cause the physician to lose the "right" to 
provide the services which are described in the agreement.  However, this would not mean that 
the physician would lose his Medical Staff membership and privileges; he/she would simply lose 
the right to gain access to the service or department which is the subject of the exclusive 
agreement. 

5.11. Contract Termination Clause:In all cases, professional service agreements shall provide 
for a termination clause which allows for termination by either party without cause upon prior 
written notice.  The following language will be utilized: “For cause” termination of a physician 
contract during the first year of its term; “No cause” termination following the first year of its 
term.  The timeframe for prior written notice may range from 60-180 days.  Further, termination 
of the agreement does not afford the physician the right to request a medical staff hearing or 
any other review pursuant to the Medical Staff By-Laws. 

6.5.0 Provisions For Non-PhysicianHealth Professional Service Agreements 

5.1 Compensation:: 

6.1. In all cases, the contract will specify the financial arrangements related to 
the provision of professional services.  It is desirable that remuneration be based 
upon a set professional fee schedule rather than a percentage of gross or net 
patient charges.  However, it is recognized that a wide variety of other 
mechanisms may be utilized and such other mechanisms are left to the 
discretion of the District Chief Executive Officerand Board of Directors. 

5.2 Professional Fee Schedule:When  

5.2.1 When reimbursement is based upon professional fee schedules, said fee 
schedule shall be made a part of the agreement with the health 
professional. When provided for by agreement, professional fee schedule 
revisions will be considered once annually in a timeframe that coincides 
with the District’s operating budget. 

6.2.5.2.1.1 Requests for revisions must be submitted to the District Chief 
Executive Officer by April of each year for implementation by 
July.  The request should provide sufficient detail to fully 
describe the professional services, relevant code numbers and 
professional fees requested.  The District Chief Executive 
Officer will determine the acceptability of the proposed 
changes. 

5.3 Health Professional Qualifications in Coordination with Medical Staff By-Laws: 

5.3.1 Professional service agreements may require certain health professionals 
to be members of the District’s allied health professional staff with 
appropriate privileges pertinent to the duties and responsibilities 
described by the professional service agreement.   

6.3.5.3.2 Should a health services agreement be cancelled involving an 
allied health professional, termination of the agreement will cause the 
health professional to lose the "right" to provide the services which are 
described in the agreement.  However, this would not mean that the 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0" + Tab after: 

0.5" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 

1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 4 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Tab after:

 2.25" + Indent at:  2.25"

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 

1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Underline

192 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 17 of 20 

health professional would lose his allied health professional appointment 
or related privileges. 

5.4 Contract Termination Clause: 

5.4.1 In all cases, professional service agreements shall provide for a 
termination clause which allows for termination by either party without 
cause upon written notice.   

6.4.5.4.2 The timeframe for prior written notice may range from 60-180 
days.  When the health professional is required to be an allied health 
professional, termination of the agreement will not afford the allied health 
professional the right to request the due process hearing described by the 
Medical Staff rules and regulations for allied health professionals. 

7.6.0 Physician and Health Professional Service Agreement Contract and Service Review 

6.1 Contract Review 

6.1.1 Prior to the end of a contract period, the Chief Executive Officer may 
choose to conduct a contract review or at any time during the contract 
period.   

8. Further, the Chief Executive Officer may choose to conduct a contract 
review at any time during the contract period.  The Board of Directors can 
recommend that a contract review be done prior to most contract 
renewalsbut allowswith the following:but allows tT the Chief Executive 
Officer discretion to forego the review if the contract renewal is on an 
annual basis or if other factors indicate that the review is not necessary 
prior to that particular contract renewal. 

6.1.2  

9. At a minimum of every five years, the Chief Executive Officer will conduct 
a service review of the contract service provided by the physician, 
physician group and/or other professional service.  The Chief Executive 
Officer will undertake the service review and a report based upon this 
service review will be made to the Board of Directors. 

  
6.2 Contract Review Elements 
  

2.3.16.2.1 Ensure that the terms of the contract are being met as outlined in 
the service agreement. 

6.2.2 Review the service as it related to consistency with the District’s 
compliance program. 

6.2.3 Assessment of patient, physician and staff opinions/input/complaints. 

6.3 Service Review Elements 
  

6.3.1 As part of the service review, the Chief Executive Officer will request 
feedback from the medical and clinical staff regarding the following: 

2.3.1.1  
6.3.1.1 Quality of care being provided based on the specialty’s 

identified standards of care. 
6.3.1.2 Availability and responsiveness. 

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 

1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0" + Tab after: 

0.5" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 

1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Outline

numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,

3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font:

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

193 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 18 of 20 

6.3.1.3 Consistency with the District’s compliance program. 
6.3.1.4 Patient, physician and staff opinions/inputs/complaints 

9.1. Contract Review 
9.2. Ensure that the terms of the contract are being met as outlined in the service agreement. 
9.3. Review the service as it relates to consistency with the District’s compliance program. 
10. Assessment of patient, physician and staff opinions/input/complaints. 
10.1. Service Review 
10.2. As part of the service review, the Chief Executive Officer will request feedback from the 
medical and clinical staff regarding the following: 
10.2.1. Quality of care being provided based on the specialty’s identified standards of care. 
10.2.2. Availability and responsiveness. 
10.2.3. Consistency with the District’s compliance program. 
10.2.4. Patient, physician and staff opinions/inputs/complaints. 

6.4 Other Review Elements: In addition the Chief Executive Officer will:  
10.3.  

10.3.1.6.4.1 Ensure that the terms of the contract are being met as outlined in 
the service agreement. 

10.3.2.6.4.2 Review market conditions with appropriate benchmarking and 
make recommendations as to the continuation of the current contract.  

10.3.3.6.4.3 Ensure that the fee schedule is appropriate for current market 
conditions. 

10.3.4.6.4.4 Take in to consideration elements of the contractor’s relationships 
with service providers, the District and the community. 

6.4.5 Review standards and best practice recommendations set by professional 
and specialty organizations with appropriate consideration of our 
community and Hospital District. 
10.3.5.  

6.5 The Chief Executive Officer will compile a report based upon the service review 
and present it to the Board of Directors with recommendations related to 
continuation of the contract or consideration of a Request For Proposal (RPF) 
process. 

Contract Inclusion terms: 
7.0 General Provisions:  Physician and Health Professional Service Agreements 

7.1 Professional Service Duties and Responsibilities:  Each agreement will include a 
detailed and specific delineation of the duties and responsibilities to be 
performed by the health professional as well as the District.  For example, 
extensive detail will be provided regarding: 

7.1.1 Diagnostic and therapeutic services to be provided 

7.1.2 Medico-administrative services to be provided 

7.1.3 Coverage obligations to be assumed  

7.1.4 The rights and obligations of the District and the health professional with 
regard to providing space, equipment, supplies, personnel and 
technicians. 

7.2 Standards Of Practice:  Each agreement shall specify that the health professional 
will provide the service in accordance with the Hospital Bylaws; Medical Staff 
Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and standards established by the Executive 
Committee of the Medical Staff; with the ethical and professional standardsof the 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Outline

numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,

3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  0.5" + Tab after:  1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Don't add

space between paragraphs of the same style, 

No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Outline

numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,

3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", Don't add

space between paragraphs of the same style, 

No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

194 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 19 of 20 

American Medical Association and the California and/or Nevada Medical 
Association; the standards of the Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program 
(HFAP) and in any applicable specialty college or society or governmental 
regulation. 

7.3 Medicare and Medicaid Enrollment:  Each agreement shall specify that the health 
professional is duly enrolled in the federal Medicare program and the applicable 
State Medicaid program and eligible to seek reimbursement under such 
programs for covered services rendered by the provider to beneficiaries of such 
programs.  Every agreement must contain a provision in which the health 
professional agrees to notify TFHS in the event participation terminates.   

7.4 Quality Assessment:  Professional service agreements shall require the health 
professional to participate in the Health System,Quality Improvement Program to 
ensure that the quality, safety and appropriateness of healthcare services are 
monitored and evaluated and that appropriate actions based on findings are 
taken to promote quality patient care.  Furthermore, each agreement shall 
specify a process designed to assure that all individuals who provide patient care 
services under service agreements, but who are not subject to the Medical Staff 
privilege delineation process, are competent to provide such services.  Whenever 
possible, information from customer satisfaction surveys shall be incorporated 
into the Quality Improvement Program for said service.  Agreements which 
provide for Directorship responsibilities over a department or service shall require 
the health professional "Director" to be responsible for implementing a monitoring 
and evaluation process designed to improve patient care outcomes and which is 
integrated with the Health SystemQualityImprovementProgram.  

7.5 Assignability:  It is desirable that all professional service agreements be non-
assignable unless important to the successful negotiation of a contract where 
higher priority objectives may be achieved.  Where assignability becomes 
necessary, assignability shall be allowed only with the condition that prior written 
consent of the Board of Directors be obtained. 

7.6 Contract Term:  Professional service agreements shall specify a specific term 
and termination date (i.e., not automatically renewable for successive years).  In 
considering the term of the agreement, the termination date of related 
agreements should be considered by the District Chief Executive Officer so as to 
minimize the likelihood of multiple agreements coming due on the same date or 
year.  The length of the term shall be negotiable.  Professional service contracts 
will typically range from one to four years in duration. 

7.7 Professional Liability:  In all cases, the health professional will be responsible for 
providing adequate professional liability insurance coverage at the health 
professional's expense.  Limits of coverage for physicians will be a minimum of 
$l,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 aggregate.  For non-physicians, the 
minimum limits of coverage may vary depending on the standard established for 
that health profession.  The agreement shall also specify that the contracting 
health professional will, in turn, either require or arrange for professional liability 
insurance coverage for all sub-contracting health professionals.  Furthermore, 
the professional liability insurance policy must be obtained from a professional 
liability insurer which is authorized to transact the business of insurance in the 
State of California (or Nevada in the case of professional services provided at the 
District’s Community Hospital in Incline Village, Nevada).  Also, the professional 

195 of 221



 

ABD-21 Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 20 of 20 

services agreement must require that the selected insurer will be responsible for 
notifying the District of any cancellation or reduction in coverage within thirty days 
of said action. 

7.8 Regulatory Compliance:  The agreement should include provisions in which both 
the District and the health professional commit to full compliance with all federal, 
state, and local laws. The contracting party should agree to keep confidential any 
financial, operating, proprietary, or business information relating to the District 
and to keep confidential, and to take the usual precautions to prevent the 
unauthorized use and disclosure of any and all Protected Health Information.  
The agreement should include provisions for amendment to the agreement in 
furtherance of maintaining compliance in the event of the adoption of subsequent 
legislation and/or regulations. 

7.9 Recitals:  Exclusive professional service agreements should include a carefully 
developed description of the rationales for exclusivity in a particular clinical 
service or department. Furthermore, if the agreement does assign exclusive 
responsibility for a particular service, it should state so expressly not leaving this 
to inference or interpretation. 

7.10 Professional Relationships:  The agreement should specify that the health 
professional is an independent contractor and is not an employee of the District. 

7.11 Government Audit:  The agreement should include the standard provision 
recognizing that the agreement and certain other materials will be subject to audit 
and inspection by certain federal authorities with regard to payments made for 
Medicare services. 

7.12 Standard Contractual Language:  The agreement should include certain standard 
provisions to theeffect that the provisions of the contract are severable and, 
therefore, the ruling that any one of them is void does not invalidate the entire 
agreement, and that the waiver of breach of one provision does not constitute a 
continuing waiver, and that the written agreement constitutes the entire contract 
between the parties. 

10.4.7.13 Managed Care:The physician or health professional agrees to participate 
as a preferred provider with all of the managed healthcare plans (PPOs and 
HMOs) that the District has agreements with including agreements with 
insurance companies, health maintenance organizations and direct contracting 
with self-funded employers.  Any deviation of this policy must be approved by 
District Administration and the Board of Directors. 

Related Policies/Forms: Contracts Routing Form, Model Agreements 
References: 
Policy Owner:Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Chief Executive Officer 
 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:

 1" + Indent at:  1", Don't adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust

space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

196 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 1 of 13 

 

TahoeForest Health System 

Title:Physician and Professional 
Service Agreements Policy/Procedure #: ABD-21 

Responsible Department: Board of Directors 

Type of policy Original Date: Reviewed Dates: Revision Dates:  

 

 Board 1/90 5/00; 01/12; 1/14 01/10; 02/14; 

06/15 

 Medical Staff    

 Departmental    

Applies to:   System TahoeForestHospital InclineVillageCommunityHospital 

PURPOSE:  

This policy is intended to provide the District’s Chief Executive Officer a general framework for 
professional services contracting and recognizes that flexibility may be required due to the 
broad scope of professional services that may be covered.  Further, to insure that the 
professional service provider is meeting the needs of Tahoe Forest Hospital District and the 
community that it serves, as well as allowing the provider to update the actual services 
performed, a formal service review process will be utilized. 

POLICY: 

Written professional service agreements will be prepared for all physicians and health 
professionals who qualify as independent contractors and who provide diagnostic or therapeutic 
services to Tahoe Forest Hospital District's patients, or who provide certain medico-
administrative duties within a hospital department or service.   

The following list exemplifies physicians and health professionals who will be covered by this 
policy including but not limited to:  

 Anesthesiologists 
 Medical Directors of specific departments/services, and Medical Staff Officers 
 Physicians providing services in the District’s Medical Services Clinics and Cancer 

Center 
 Physicians serving in medical-administrative roles or on hospital committees  
 Nuclear Medicine Specialists 
 Emergency Services physicians 
 Occupational therapists 
 Pathologists 
 Physical therapists 
 Radiologists 
 Speech pathologists 
 Emergency and urgent care providers 
 Mid-level practitioners not employed by the District 
 Hospitalists 

197 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 2 of 13 

 Other contracted physicians 

Procedures 
1.0 All professional service agreements will be developed between the District’s Chief 

Executive Officer and health professionals.   

1.1 New agreementsshall utilize the model agreement for the type of service required 
from the contracting professional (See Exhibit A, attached, for a list of available 
model agreements); and 

1.1.1 New agreements not utilizing the model agreement for the type of service 
required shall be reviewed by legal counsel prior to submission to the 
District’s Board of Directors. 

1.1.2 Agreementscommitting $25,000.00 or more in any given twelve-month 
period: 

1.1.2.1 Once agreement is reached between the District’s Chief 
Executive Officer and health professional, CEO will present 
the Contract Routing Form (or equivalent data summary 
report) with the principal terms and conditions listed, to the 
Board of Directors for their consideration.  Principal terms and 
conditions include, but are not limited to, purpose of 
agreement, agreement term, compensation, scope of duties, 
total cost of contract, and other pertinent information. 

1.1.2.2 Upon their review and consideration, the Board of Directors 
may request specific changes be made to the proposed terms 
and conditions, and revised terms and conditions be submitted 
to the Board at its next scheduled or special meeting. 

1.1.2.3 After approval by the Board of Directors, the CEO will present 
the agreement to the health professional for review and 
signature, indicating his or her acceptance of the included 
terms 

1.1.2.4 In the event the health professional requests changes in the 
principal terms and conditions of the agreement, the CEO will 
present a modified Contract Routing Form (or equivalent) to 
the Board of Directors 

1.1.2.5 The District’s Chief Executive Officer will place the agreement 
on the agenda of the District Board of Directors for their 
consideration.   

1.1.2.6 The professional service agreement will become effective 
following the Board of Directors' ratification, subject to the 
contract term identified in the agreement.   

1.1.3 New agreementscommitting less than $25,000per twelve-month 
periodcan be authorized by the District’s Chief Executive Officerwithout 
Board approval so long as funds have been authorized in the District’s 
operating budget for that fiscal year. 

1.2 Renewal agreements: 

198 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 3 of 13 

1.2.1 All renewing agreements shall utilize the model agreement for the type of 
service required from the contracting professional. 

1.2.1.1 Agreementscommitting $25,000.00 or more in any given 
twelve-month period: 

1.2.1.1.1 Once agreement is reached between the District’s 
Chief Executive Officer and health professional, CEO 
will present the Contract Routing Form (or equivalent) 
with the principal terms and conditions listed, to the 
Board of Directors for their consideration. Principal 
terms and conditions include, but are not limited to, 
purpose of agreement, agreement term, compensation, 
scope of duties, total cost of contract, and other 
pertinent information. 

1.2.1.1.2 Upon their review and consideration, the Board of 
Directors may request specific changes be made to the 
proposed terms and conditions, and revised terms and 
conditions be submitted to the Board at its next 
scheduled or special meeting. 

1.2.1.1.3 After approval by the Board of Directors, the CEO will 
present the agreement to the health professional for 
review and signature, indicating his or her acceptance 
of the included terms 

1.2.1.1.4 In the event the health professional requests changes 
in the principal terms and conditions of the agreement, 
the CEO will present a modified Contract Routing Form 
(or equivaent) to the Board of Directors 

1.2.1.1.5 The District’s Chief Executive Officer will place the 
agreement on the agenda of the District Board of 
Directors for their consideration.   

1.2.1.1.6 The professional service agreement will become 
effective following the Board of Directors' ratification, 
subject to the contract term identified in the agreement.   

1.2.2 Renewal agreementscommitting less than $25,000per twelve-month 
periodcan be authorized by the District’s Chief Executive Officerwithout 
Board approval so long as funds have been authorized in the District’s 
operating budget for that fiscal year. 

1.3 Physician and other professional service agreements due for renewal may be 
held over for up to six months with no change in compensation terms at the 
discretion of the CEO, and in accordance with Stark Law and OIG regulations. 

1.4 Urgent Services: 

1.4.1 At the discretion of the CEO, an agreement required for urgent services 
may be presented directly to the Board of Directors. 

1.4.1.1 All terms and condition must be included at the time of 
presentation. 

199 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 4 of 13 

1.4.1.2 The signature of the health professional will be required on 
such agreementsat the time of presentation to the Board. 

1.5 All physician and professional service agreements will be processed by the Chief 
Executive Officer’s administrative staff.  The following guidelines will be utilized: 

1.5.1 Material for agreements will be presented to the Chief Executive Officer’s 
administrative staff in a timely manner to ensure that adequate time is 
available for preparation of the agreement within the required timeframes 
for timely execution and implementation. 

1.5.2 Content and negotiations with health service professionals will remain 
thethe responsibility of the Admin Council members. 

2.0 Compensation under Professional Service Agreements With Physicians Only. 

In all cases, agreement will specify the financial arrangements related to the provision of 
physician professional services.  The following methodologies may be utilized: 
2.1 Hourly rates.  Hourly rates are the preferred compensation method for 

administrative duties such as medical directorships, medical staff leadership 
positions, or committee attendance.   Hourly rates or “per shift” rates with hours 
of coverage and response time specified are the preferred compensation method 
for on-call and hospitalist coverage. 

2.1.1 Physicians shall be required to document the date, hours spent, and a 
description of work completed for all administrative duties. 

2.1.2 On call calendars maintained by the medical staff office may be utilized 
as documentation for on-call and hospitalist agreements. 

2.1.3 MSC physicians may receive RVU credit for administrative duties in lieu 
of cash compensation. 

2.2 Base compensation plus bonus.  Payment of a fixed base compensation plus 
bonus is the preferred compensation method for multi-specialty clinic (MSC) 
physicians who are working more than half time.   A consistent model for the 
compensation of MSC physicians shall be utilized, which may be subject to 
modification annually. 

2.2.1 Management shall endeavor to create a model that is aligned with the 
following organizational goals, recognizing that simultaneous 
achievement of all goals may not be possible in all cases; however the 
first of these goals (paying within fair market value) cannot be 
compromised in any circumstance. 

2.2.1.1 Pay within constraints of fair market value  

2.2.1.2 Maintain internal equity within and between specialties 

2.2.1.3 Provide sufficient compensation to recruit and retain 
physicians 

2.2.1.4 Encourage quality and productivity 

2.2.1.5 Be Clear and understandable to all parties 

2.2.2 Base compensation shall be established based on an agreed upon 
percentage of the median compensation from one or more published 
compensation surveys, adjusted for the physician’s FTE status. 

200 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 5 of 13 

2.2.2.1 FTE status shall be based on agreed number of days of work 
and/or hours of clinical availability, which may vary by 
specialty but which shall be consistent within each specialty. 

2.2.2.2 The survey to be utilized shall be the annual MGMA Physician 
Compensation and Production Survey. 

2.2.2.3 The Western Region median shall be utilized.   

2.2.2.4 Data shall be smoothed by utilizing a 3-year average of the 
median from the three most recently published surveys. 

2.2.2.5 In the event that, in management’s professional opinion, the 
data from the MGMA survey in the Western Region is 
unreliable due to the low number of respondents or other 
factors, management may utilize the national median and/or 
data from other published surveys. 

2.2.2.6 Survey data shall be adjusted for inflation that has occurred 
since the data was collected. 

2.2.2.7 The percentage of median may be adjusted based on the 
physician’s historic productivity, years of experience, special 
expertise, or the difficulty of recruiting a particular specialty to 
the area.   However: 

2.2.2.7.1 In no case shall the percentage of median 
compensation paid as base compensation (before 
FTE adjustment) fall below 70% nor shall it exceed 
130% of the median. 

2.2.2.7.2 In no case shall a physician’s base compensation 
be decreased relative to the prior year unless 
either: 

2.2.2.7.3 Physician’s FTE status has changed 

2.2.2.7.4 Physician’s prior year productivity has fallen below 
90% of the prior year’s target, and physician failed 
to reach this productivity level due to factors that 
are under the physician’s control, such as leaving 
early or taking excessive time off.  Determination of 
the reasons for any such failure shall be reviewed 
by a panel that includes the Executive Director (or 
designee), the Medical Director and at least one 
other physician. 

2.2.3 The costs of malpractice insurance and benefits that are borne by the 
physicians shall be considered based on such reasonable methodology 
as may be developed by management, which may include but is not 
limited to: 

2.2.3.1 Adding the estimated costs of malpractice insurance, health 
insurance, retirement benefits, employer-paid payroll taxes, 
and other benefits that are customarily paid by organizations 
with the ability to employ physicians. 

201 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 6 of 13 

2.2.3.2 Reducing the WRVU target by an amount that would enable 
physicians to earn all or a portion of those costs by reaching a 
production level that is commensurate with their 
compensation. 

2.2.4 Physician contracts may include a production and/or quality incentive, to 
encourage physicians to work to their full capacity, provided: 

2.2.4.1 Productivity is measured in Work Relative Value Units 
(WRVUs), unless physician works in a specialty for which 
WRVU benchmark data is either unavailable or insufficient, in 
which case an alternate measure such as visits may be 
utilized.   

2.2.4.2 The production incentive is in no way tied to referrals or to use 
of Tahoe Forest Hospital facilities. 

2.2.4.3 The production target is set based on the same survey 
benchmarks utilized for compensation, and is set at a level 
that is proportionate to base salary. 

2.2.4.4 Quality incentives, if any, are measurable and linked to factors 
that are within the physician’s control. 

2.2.4.5 The total projected compensation, including incentives, does 
not exceed fair market value. 

2.3 Rate per Work Relative Value Unit (WRVU).  Payment at a set rate per Work 
Relative Value Unit (WRVU) is the preferred compensation method for multi-
specialty clinic (MSC) physicians who are working less than half time. 

2.3.1 The rate per RVU shall be based on the same compensation and 
production survey data that is utilized for physicians working half time or 
more, and may include an allowance for malpractice and benefits. 

2.4 Percentage of professional fee collections. Payment based on a percentage of 
professional fees collected may be utilized for physicians who are not part of the 
MSC in those instances where the District accepts responsibility for billing and 
collecting from the patient or any third party payer for professional services and is 
able to separately bill for professional service fees. 

2.4.1 Remuneration based upon a percentage of combined facility and 
professional gross charges or collections is prohibited. 

2.4.2 The District will remit the amounts collected, depending upon the 
agreement, to the physician, deducting a percentage to account for the 
estimated expenses of the District’s billing and collection services and 
other administrative and support services, if provided.   

2.4.3 If the payment to the healthcare provider is based upon billings rather 
than collections, a further percentage will be deducted so to account for 
the estimated incidents of bad debts and contractual allowances.  
Furthermore, if the payment to the healthcare provider is based upon 
billings rather than collections, a revenue collection analysis will be 
performed at least annually to ensure compliance to the above 
compensation provision. 

202 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 7 of 13 

2.4.4 All professional fee schedules shall be made a part of the agreement and 
appropriately referenced.  Professional fee schedules may be revised 
annually.  Any changes to the professional fee schedule must be 
discussed between the District Chief Executive Officer and requesting 
physician prior to becoming effective.  Requests shall conform to the 
following criteria: 

2.4.4.1 Should provide sufficient detail to fully describe the professional 
services, relevant code numbers and professional fees;  

2.4.4.2 All professional fees shall be reasonable and customary and 
comparable to professional fees charged by their peers within our 
region.  The mechanism for determining compliance to this 
criteria will be determined on a case by case basis between the 
professional provider and District Chief Executive Officer. 

2.4.4.3 Other relevant information should also be provided, e.g., changes 
required as a result of regulatory mandates; requests from 
individual physicians and Medical Staff; new service charges or 
extraordinary changes in provider costs not previously 
anticipated. 

2.4.4.4 Written agreement reflecting mutual acceptance of the proposed 
revisions as meeting the above criteria shall be required prior to 
the changes becoming effective. 

2.5 Payment per service.Payment at a specified rate per service is the preferred 
method for limited scope agreements in which the physician is providing clearly 
delineated clinical services.  Examples include EKG interpretations, audiology 
reviews, and other services that are billed on a global basis by the hospital. 

2.6 Specialty call activation fee.In specialties where a regular on-call panel is either 
infeasible due to the number of physicians on the medical staff within that 
specialty or the low incidence of emergency need for that specialty, a specialty 
activation fee may be offered in the event that physician is called in to respond to 
an emergency. 

2.7 Fair Market Value.In all cases, physician’s compensation must be within fair 
market value and must be determined to be commercially reasonable. 

2.7.1 Fair market value for any individual contract shall generally be defined as 
an amount equal to or less than the 75th percentile of compensation, 
considering the physician’s FTE status and production levels. 

2.7.2 However management shall endeavor to design a compensation model 
that maintains the average physician’s compensation within +/- 10% of 
the median (or between the 40th and 60th percentiles?). 

3.0 Multiple agreements   

3.1 Nothing in this policy shall prohibit the hospital from entering into multiple 
agreements with physicians; provided however that the designated hours of 
service are clearly segregated. 
3.1.1 Physicians whose MSC duties are typically during regular Monday 

through Friday daytime hours may be paid for on-call coverage during 

203 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 8 of 13 

evenings, weekends, and scheduled days off and/or for administrative 
duties performed during lunch or after regular clinic hours. 

3.1.2 MSC physicians who provide hospitalist, on-call, or administrative 
services during normal scheduled clinic time shall receive WRVU credit in 
lieu of cash payment. 

3.1.3 The physician may perform administrative duties while on call, as long as 
clinical duties are not needed.  If the physician is need for clinical duties, 
they must not bill administrative time when performing clinical duties. 

4.0 Physician Qualifications:   

4.1 Professional service agreements with physicians shall require: 

4.1.1 A valid and unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state issued by 
the applicable state Medical Board; 

4.1.2 All appropriate certifications, registrations and approvals from the Federal 
Drug Enforcement Administration and any other applicable federal or 
state agency necessary to prescribe and dispense drugs under applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations, in each case without restriction; 

4.1.3 Prompt disclosure of  the commencement or pendency of any action, 
proceeding, investigation or disciplinary proceeding against or involving 
Physician, including, without limitation, any medical staff investigation or 
disciplinary action; 

4.1.4 Prompt written notice of any threat, claim or legal proceeding against 
TFHD that Physician becomes aware of, and cooperate with TFHD in the 
defense of any such threat, claim or proceeding and enforcing the rights 
(including rights of contribution or indemnity) that TFHD may have against 
other parties or through its insurance policies; 

4.1.5 No discrimination against a patient based on race, creed, national origin, 
gender, sexual orientation, disability (including, without limitation, the 
condition(s) for which the patient seeks professional services from 
Physician), ability to pay or payment source. 

4.2 Physician Qualifications In Coordination With Medical Staff Bylaws:   

4.2.1 Professional service agreements with physicians shall requiretheir 
membership on the District’s Medical Staff with appropriate privileges 
pertinent to the duties and responsibilities described by the professional 
service agreement.   

4.2.2 Termination of the agreement will cause the physician to lose the "right" 
to provide the services which are described in the agreement.  However, 
this would not mean that the physician would lose his Medical Staff 
membership and privileges; he/she would simply lose the right to gain 
access to the service or department which is the subject of the exclusive 
agreement. 

4.3 Contract Termination Clause 

4.3.1 :In all cases, professional service agreements shall provide for a 
termination clause which allows for termination by either party without 
cause upon prior written notice.   

204 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 9 of 13 

4.3.2 The following language will be utilized: “For cause” termination of a 
physician contract during the first year of its term; “No cause” termination 
following the first year of its term.   

4.3.2.1 The timeframe for prior written notice may range from 60-180 
days.  Further, termination of the agreement does not afford 
the physician the right to request a medical staff hearing or 
any other review pursuant to the Medical Staff By-Laws. 

. 

5.0 Provisions For Health Professional Service Agreements 

5.1 Compensation: 

In all cases, the contract will specify the financial arrangements related to the 
provision of professional services.  It is desirable that remuneration be based 
upon a set professional fee schedule rather than a percentage of gross or net 
patient charges.  However, it is recognized that a wide variety of other 
mechanisms may be utilized and such other mechanisms are left to the 
discretion of the District Chief Executive Officerand Board of Directors. 

5.2 Professional Fee Schedule: 

5.2.1 When reimbursement is based upon professional fee schedules, said fee 
schedule shall be made a part of the agreement with the health 
professional. When provided for by agreement, professional fee schedule 
revisions will be considered once annually in a timeframe that coincides 
with the District’s operating budget. 

5.2.1.1 Requests for revisions must be submitted to the District Chief 
Executive Officer by April of each year for implementation by 
July.  The request should provide sufficient detail to fully 
describe the professional services, relevant code numbers and 
professional fees requested.  The District Chief Executive 
Officer will determine the acceptability of the proposed 
changes. 

5.3 Health Professional Qualifications in Coordination with Medical Staff By-Laws: 

5.3.1 Professional service agreements may require certain health professionals 
to be members of the District’s allied health professional staff with 
appropriate privileges pertinent to the duties and responsibilities 
described by the professional service agreement.   

5.3.2 Should a health services agreement be cancelled involving an allied 
health professional, termination of the agreement will cause the health 
professional to lose the "right" to provide the services which are described 
in the agreement.  However, this would not mean that the health 
professional would lose his allied health professional appointment or 
related privileges. 

5.4 Contract Termination Clause 

5.4.1 In all cases, professional service agreements shall provide for a 
termination clause which allows for termination by either party without 
cause upon written notice.   

205 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 10 of 13 

5.4.2 The timeframe for prior written notice may range from 60-180 days.  
When the health professional is required to be an allied health 
professional, termination of the agreement will not afford the allied health 
professional the right to request the due process hearing described by the 
Medical Staff rules and regulations for allied health professionals. 

6.0 Physician and Health Professional Service Agreement Contract and Service Review 

6.1 Contract Review 

6.1.1 Prior to the end of a contract period, the Chief Executive Officer may 
choose to conduct a contract review or at any time during the contract 
period.   

6.1.2 The Board of Directors can recommend that a contract review be done 
prior to most contract renewalsbut allows the CEO discretion to forego the 
review if the contract renewal is on an annual basis or if other factors 
indicate that the review is not necessary prior to that particular contract 
renewal. 

At a minimum of every five years, the Chief Executive Officer will conduct 
a service review of the contract service provided by the physician, 
physician group and/or other professional service.  The Chief Executive 
Officer will undertake the service review and a report based upon this 
service review will be made to the Board of Directors. 

6.2 Contract Review Elements 
 

6.2.1 Ensure that the terms of the contract are being met as outlined in the 
service agreement. 

6.2.2 Review the service as it related to consistency with the District’s 
compliance program. 

6.2.3 Assessment of patient, physician and staff opinions/input/complaints. 

6.3 Service Review Elements 
 

6.3.1 As part of the service review, the Chief Executive Officer will request 
feedback from the medical and clinical staff regarding the following: 

 
6.3.1.1 Quality of care being provided based on the specialty’s 

identified standards of care. 
6.3.1.2 Availability and responsiveness. 
6.3.1.3 Consistency with the District’s compliance program. 
6.3.1.4 Patient, physician and staff opinions/inputs/complaints 

 
6.4 Other Review Elements: In addition the Chief Executive Officer will:  
 

6.4.1 Ensure that the terms of the contract are being met as outlined in the 
service agreement. 

6.4.2 Review market conditions with appropriate benchmarking and make 
recommendations as to the continuation of the current contract.  

6.4.3 Ensure that the fee schedule is appropriate for current market conditions. 
6.4.4 Take in to consideration elements of the contractor’s relationships with 

service providers, the District and the community. 

206 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 11 of 13 

6.4.5 Review standards and best practice recommendations set by professional 
and specialty organizations with appropriate consideration of our 
community and Hospital District. 
 

6.5 The Chief Executive Officer will compile a report based upon the service review 
and present it to the Board of Directors with recommendations related to 
continuation of the contract or consideration of a Request For Proposal (RPF) 
process. 

Contract Inclusion terms: 
7.0 General Provisions:  Physician and Health Professional Service Agreements 

7.1 Professional Service Duties and Responsibilities:  Each agreement will include a 
detailed and specific delineation of the duties and responsibilities to be 
performed by the health professional as well as the District.  For example, 
extensive detail will be provided regarding: 

7.1.1 Diagnostic and therapeutic services to be provided 

7.1.2 Medico-administrative services to be provided 

7.1.3 Coverage obligations to be assumed  

7.1.4 The rights and obligations of the District and the health professional with 
regard to providing space, equipment, supplies, personnel and 
technicians. 

7.2 Standards Of Practice:  Each agreement shall specify that the health professional 
will provide the service in accordance with the Hospital Bylaws; Medical Staff 
Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and standards established by the Executive 
Committee of the Medical Staff; with the ethical and professional standardsof the 
American Medical Association and the California and/or Nevada Medical 
Association; the standards of the Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program 
(HFAP) and in any applicable specialty college or society or governmental 
regulation. 

7.3 Medicare and Medicaid Enrollment:  Each agreement shall specify that the health 
professional is duly enrolled in the federal Medicare program and the applicable 
State Medicaid program and eligible to seek reimbursement under such 
programs for covered services rendered by the provider to beneficiaries of such 
programs.  Every agreement must contain a provision in which the health 
professional agrees to notify TFHS in the event participation terminates.   

7.4 Quality Assessment:  Professional service agreements shall require the health 
professional to participate in the Health System,Quality Improvement Program to 
ensure that the quality, safety and appropriateness of healthcare services are 
monitored and evaluated and that appropriate actions based on findings are 
taken to promote quality patient care.  Furthermore, each agreement shall 
specify a process designed to assure that all individuals who provide patient care 
services under service agreements, but who are not subject to the Medical Staff 
privilege delineation process, are competent to provide such services.  Whenever 
possible, information from customer satisfaction surveys shall be incorporated 
into the Quality Improvement Program for said service.  Agreements which 
provide for Directorship responsibilities over a department or service shall require 
the health professional "Director" to be responsible for implementing a monitoring 

207 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 12 of 13 

and evaluation process designed to improve patient care outcomes and which is 
integrated with the Health SystemQualityImprovementProgram.  

7.5 Assignability:  It is desirable that all professional service agreements be non-
assignable unless important to the successful negotiation of a contract where 
higher priority objectives may be achieved.  Where assignability becomes 
necessary, assignability shall be allowed only with the condition that prior written 
consent of the Board of Directors be obtained. 

7.6 Contract Term:  Professional service agreements shall specify a specific term 
and termination date (i.e., not automatically renewable for successive years).  In 
considering the term of the agreement, the termination date of related 
agreements should be considered by the District Chief Executive Officer so as to 
minimize the likelihood of multiple agreements coming due on the same date or 
year.  The length of the term shall be negotiable.  Professional service contracts 
will typically range from one to four years in duration. 

7.7 Professional Liability:  In all cases, the health professional will be responsible for 
providing adequate professional liability insurance coverage at the health 
professional's expense.  Limits of coverage for physicians will be a minimum of 
$l,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 aggregate.  For non-physicians, the 
minimum limits of coverage may vary depending on the standard established for 
that health profession.  The agreement shall also specify that the contracting 
health professional will, in turn, either require or arrange for professional liability 
insurance coverage for all sub-contracting health professionals.  Furthermore, 
the professional liability insurance policy must be obtained from a professional 
liability insurer which is authorized to transact the business of insurance in the 
State of California (or Nevada in the case of professional services provided at the 
District’s Community Hospital in Incline Village, Nevada).  Also, the professional 
services agreement must require that the selected insurer will be responsible for 
notifying the District of any cancellation or reduction in coverage within thirty days 
of said action. 

7.8 Regulatory Compliance:  The agreement should include provisions in which both 
the District and the health professional commit to full compliance with all federal, 
state, and local laws. The contracting party should agree to keep confidential any 
financial, operating, proprietary, or business information relating to the District 
and to keep confidential, and to take the usual precautions to prevent the 
unauthorized use and disclosure of any and all Protected Health Information.  
The agreement should include provisions for amendment to the agreement in 
furtherance of maintaining compliance in the event of the adoption of subsequent 
legislation and/or regulations. 

7.9 Recitals:  Exclusive professional service agreements should include a carefully 
developed description of the rationales for exclusivity in a particular clinical 
service or department. Furthermore, if the agreement does assign exclusive 
responsibility for a particular service, it should state so expressly not leaving this 
to inference or interpretation. 

7.10 Professional Relationships:  The agreement should specify that the health 
professional is an independent contractor and is not an employee of the District. 

7.11 Government Audit:  The agreement should include the standard provision 
recognizing that the agreement and certain other materials will be subject to audit 

208 of 221



 

Physicians and Professional Service Agreement 
Page 13 of 13 

and inspection by certain federal authorities with regard to payments made for 
Medicare services. 

7.12 Standard Contractual Language:  The agreement should include certain standard 
provisions to theeffect that the provisions of the contract are severable and, 
therefore, the ruling that any one of them is void does not invalidate the entire 
agreement, and that the waiver of breach of one provision does not constitute a 
continuing waiver, and that the written agreement constitutes the entire contract 
between the parties. 

7.13 Managed Care:The physician or health professional agrees to participate as a 
preferred provider with all of the managed healthcare plans (PPOs and HMOs) 
that the District has agreements with including agreements with insurance 
companies, health maintenance organizations and direct contracting with self-
funded employers.  Any deviation of this policy must be approved by District 
Administration and the Board of Directors. 

Related Policies/Forms: Contracts Routing Form, Model Agreements 
References: 
Policy Owner:Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Chief Executive Officer 
 

209 of 221



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
Board Executive Summary 

 
  By: Karen Sessler, M.D. 
  President, Board of Directors 
 
 
   DATE: July 23, 2015 
 
 
ISSUE:    
Six month check in on Board goals for 2015. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The board initially set goals for 2015 in January 2015, and further refined those goals following 
the Board retreat in March 2015. Staff assisted in the creation of the attached 2015 Board 
Goals grid to more clearly identify metrics, goal owners and status. 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Review progress toward established goals and identify tactics for achieving outstanding items. 
Specific input is requested regarding Goal 5: Update the Mission and Vision Statements. Input 
may be used in identifying agenda items for the board retreat in September. 
 
 
 
Alternatives: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

210 of 221



Stated Goal: Tactic Measurement Owner Status

A.  The personnel committee will create a CEO search 

process plan

Commence on April 9 Personnel Committee
Done

Communicate the plan/process Board Chair/Board Ongoing

B.  Personnel committee to establish CEO criteria with input 

from medical staff, employees, the community and Board (all 

stakeholder groups).

Board approved CEO Criteria.  Written plan to Board at May 

Meeting

Personnel Committee In Process

C.  Vet a search firm/negotiate contract Personnel Committee Done

A.  Establish a formalized/systematic CEO review process Form will be provided to Interim CEO for review and 

Consideration

Personnel Committee In Process

B.  Friday Update provided to the Board by the CEO Interim CEO will provide written report for upload to the 

Board Portal each week. 

CEO On hold

C.  No surprises – both directions Meeting assessment form

Efficiency of meetings

Board / CEO Ongoing

3 Ensure the Long-term Viability of the Hospital District A.  Board to be educated and understand the necessary 

business models for the future

CEO to provide education materials on a consistent basis - 

tie to decisions coming to the board in the future

CEO Ongoing

A.  Develop a plan to meet with small groups of concerned 

community members  Rotating Board Director and CEO to 

provide a feedback/communication loop.

Establish an “ears open, mouth closed”approach

Breakfast meeting approximately every six weeks.

Brooks to work with interim CEO to establish first meeting.

CEO Ongoing

B.  Monthly Board Director/CEO rounding for staff CEO Ongoing

C.  Board Directors to continue to engage in the community Coordination with Ted and Paige

A.  Accelerate the visioning process. Have the Personnel 

Committee make a recommendation to the Board and 

include the visioning process as part of the CEO search.

Chair will have a conversation with Zipkin and Whiteside to 

identify how to include this as a component.

Personnel Committee

B.  CEO will determine best practices and make a 

recommendation to the Board.

CEO

C.  Process will be completed prior to hiring a new CEO Personnel Committee

D.  Process will be collaborative with all stakeholders Stakeholders

A.  Work closely with Administration Fox Group 2015 Plan 

Approved

B.  Quarterly update report to the Board from the CEO Fox Group 1Q Done

C.  Review the consultant reports/recommendations Medium term plan in process. 

Determine short / medium / long term plan for Compliance 

program staffing

Fox Group Done

A.  Review current ethics policies Governance Committee

B.  Adopt the JUST Culture Board / TFHD

C.  Lead by example at the Board level Board Ongoing

D.  Ongoing education CSDA certification and ACHD program will be looked at 

more closely for models to determine the subgoals.

Ted Owens/Governance Committee In Process

A.  Limit presenters to 5 minutes Board Chair

B.  Develop a hard stop time limit (10:00 PM) Board Chair

C.  Move consent to the end of the agenda Governance Committee/Board

D.  No surprises Board / CEO

It is a Priority of the Board that TFHD Functions to the 

Highest Ethical Standards

Limit regular, open-session, Board meetings to 3-4 hours, 

once a month

2015  TFHD Board Goals DASHBOARD

1 Confirm a CEO within 12 months

Develop a Strong Partnership between the Board & CEO

Improve the Relationship between the Board, Hospital and 

the Community

Update the Mission and Vision Statements

Ensure Effective Compliance Program is a Priority of the 

Board

8

7

6

5

4

2

211 of 221



*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 

(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
Page 1 of 1 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

     Thursday, July 23, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.  
Eskridge Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

Dale Chamblin, Committee Chair; Greg Jellinek, M.D., Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code 
Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee 
may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, 
or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 05/21/2015 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 
6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION 
6.1. Financial Reports: 

6.1.1. Financial Report – Preliminary June 2015 Quarterly Packet ............................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.2. Quarterly Review Financial Status of Separate Entities ................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.3. Quarterly Review of Revenue Payor Mix .......................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.4. TIRHR Expenditure Report ................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

6.2. General Obligation Bond Property Tax Rate Calculation and Resolution ........................ ATTACHMENT 
6.3. Board Education and Updates 

6.3.1. Pricing  
 

 
7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
8. AGENDA INPUT FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING ...................................... ATTACHMENT 

 
9. NEXT MEETING DATE ................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

 
10. ADJOURN 

212 of 221



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Jake Dorst  DATE: 07/21/2015 
 CEO/CIO 
 
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 2.1  
Develop an accountable and fully engaged team / establish a formal system of communication and 
feedback with the medical staff organization and medical staff leadership to optimize medical staff 
involvement in strategic planning, projects and program innovation. 
 

 TFHD has engaged ECG to begin working on alternative partnering avenues with local physicians 
and clinics in our district. 
 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 2.2  
Develop an accountable and fully engaged team / Conduct a formal survey to optimize employee 
engagement and use results to identify opportunities for improvement 

 

 Administrative rounding and open table lunches with the CEO continue.  
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 4.2 
Develop and approve Meaningful Use (MU) stage one attestation plan Measurement: TFHS hospitals 
will submit the plan no later than 4th quarter of the 2015 federal fiscal year (July 2015).   
 

 TFHD successfully attested for MU stage 1 for both Incline Village and Tahoe Forest facilities. 
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 4.3 
Develop a long-range IT EMR plan (3-10 years) to optimize potential strategic technology 
investments and execute after approval from the Board of Directors.  
 

 TFHD is reviewing the RFI responses for a new Electronic Health Record and has begun talks 
with Renown on a hosted EPIC system. 
 

 A formal RFP process will be initiated once the number of vendors is reduced via the RFI 
process and presented to the Board for approval of the new plan. 

 
STRATEGIC INTATIVE 5 
Partner with regional and local medical providers 
 

 TFHD had a good meeting with Renown and will be pursuing more information surrounding 
their EPIC EHR hosted solution. 

213 of 221



BoardofDirectors: CEO/CIO Board Report_July 2015 
 

 
STRATEGIC INTATIVE 1 
Patients Service and Quality 
 

 The Skilled Nursing Facility recently completed their Annual CDPH/CMS survey.  The results 
demonstrated substantial compliance with all of the required elements and regulations.  The 
management and staff did a remarkable job during this four day process and were commended 
on another successful survey. 

 
 

214 of 221



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board CNO/COO Report 

 
By: Judith Newland  DATE:  July 20, 2015 
  
 
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 1.1.   
Management and Medical Staff will develop an annually quality plan and safety plan.  
 
Management and Medical Staff developed a communication plan to optimize patient outcomes and improve 
patient safety by improving communication among health care professionals.  On August 13th both health 
system clinical staff and medical staff will be attending sessions on improving effective communication.  Focus 
will be on handoff communication requiring crucial information that necessitates immediate attention and 
action concerning patients and managing critical conversations with direct, open and honest communication.   
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 1.2. 
Conduct patient satisfaction surveys, report outcomes, and develop action plans for improvement – achieve 
Home Health HHCAHPS 90% top box for “patient recommendation” and “patient rate this agency 9 or 10”. 
 
Home Health Compare (HCC) is a new Medicare website created by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services.  HCC has information about the quality of care provided by Medicare-certified” home health agencies 
throughout the nation and shows you what patients said about their recent home health care experience.  
Tahoe Forest Home Health patient experience results show patients rate overall care at 93% compared to 80% 
California and 84% national.  Patient’s recommendation of the Home Health Agency to friends and family are at 
86% compared to California 74% and national 79%.  Leadership will be looking at our Home Health Compare 
comparative results carefully to prioritize and improve our quality of care and patient experience.  
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 1.4.   
Maintain accreditation with HFAP. 
 
The annual Federal Survey conducted in July as part of the annual review of our Extended Care Center was most 
successful. Upon a thorough evaluation by two surveyors, a limited number of deficiencies were identified.  The 
ECC nursing staff, support staff, and leadership have worked hard this past year to prepare for this unannounced 
survey. Congratulations to the ECC staff for a successful survey. 
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 3.5.  
Improve the continuity, effectiveness and efficiency of care delivery in clinical services. 
 
The Respiratory Therapy services have transitioned from a contracted service to a department of the hospital.  
The success of this transition can be attributed to the hard work by leadership and staff over the past year.  
There has been no changes to the service and continues with the highly skilled Respiratory Therapist that have 
always provided care to our patients.  Mr. Jason Grosdidier has taken the position as Manager of Respiratory 
Therapy Services. Mr. Bob Tilton, who has overseen the program for many years, has chosen not to continue in 
the Manager role and we wish him the best in his future endeavors.  
 

215 of 221



BoardofDirector:  CNO/COO Board Report_July 2015 
 

 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 4.0.   
Make the most effective investment in and use of information systems.  
 
The Laboratory SOFT upgrade had its formal kickoff on July 9th and will be a six month project.  The purpose of 
the upgrade is to move to the current version which will allow for additional functionality, prepare for 
meaningful Use Stage-2 and support the sharing of information with disparate EMRs and government databases.   
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 7.3.   
Develop and expand philanthropic and volunteer service. 
 
The annual Tahoe Forest Hospital Auxiliary Appreciation Luncheon was held on June 24th at Garwoods. The 
volunteers were recognized for their dedication and support to Tahoe Forest Hospital District.  
 
Congratulations to Nan Healy, long time volunteer with the North Lake Tahoe Community Health Care Auxiliary, 
for being recognized as the Volunteer of the Year for the community of Incline Village, Nevada.  Thank you to 
Mrs. Healy for her ongoing dedication and commitment as a volunteer to Incline Village Community Hospital.  
 
The Incline Village Community Hospital Foundation (IVCHF) had a successful Donor Appreciation Event on July 
8th, 2015.  The event is usually located at the Kern Schumacher estate but do to weather the event needed to be 
moved to the hospital. Even with this last minute move there were over 70 guests in attendance. The Donor 
Appreciate Event at the Kern Estate has been rescheduled for later in August. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

216 of 221



 

 

  
 
To:    Tahoe Forest Hospital District Board of Directors  
 
From:    Donald J. Whiteside, Managing Director- Executive Search 

 
Date: July 20, 2015 
 
Subject: Update on Chief Executive Officer Search 
 
 
We are now nearly three months along in our search for the next Chief Executive Officer for 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District (TFHD).  We are about where I expected we would be at this 
point and making good progress.  I regret not being able to deliver this report in person, but I 
am traveling to meet with two possible candidates. 
 
In the initial stages of a search, our goal is to gather the necessary information from a variety of 
sources so that we determine the qualities, characteristics, and background for the best 
candidates. As you probably know, meetings were held with multiple community members and 
groups in the District.  And, of course, I met with Board members, all levels of staff and 
administration, and members of the medical staff.  We also received many emails to 
TahoeForestCEOSearch@gmail.com.  
 
Upon the completion of these meetings (though some input is still coming in), the information 
was memorialized in the CEO Job Specification presented at the Board meeting on June 19, 
2015. The next important stage in a search is to communicate this opportunity to every possible 
candidate.  To accomplish this, I’ve sent nearly 1000 personalized emails to high level 
healthcare executives in California and beyond. I have also made over 100 phone calls to 
appropriate individuals. These messages went to nearly every hospital and healthcare system 
CEO and CFO in California. Additional recipients were trade association execs, industry 
contracts, and key executives from HFS’s database.  Follow up phone calls and return emails to 
everyone that responded, as well as many that did not, resulted in a possible candidate list of 
more than 40 candidates.Of these, nearly 20 were qualified and worth further exploration.  
 
After extensive phone interviews with the above candidates, we now have 13 remaining 
executives.  Of the group that was already eliminated, some chose to withdraw themselves, and 
some were not qualified or a good fit.   
 
Currently, and over the next few weeks, I hope to meet with each of the remaining candidates, 
either in person (best choice) or via a video call (if candidate is too far away or too difficult to 
schedule).  After these interviews, I will be prepared to present the best of the group to the 
Board for consideration.  Each candidate has been requested to write a letter expressing their 

217 of 221

mailto:TahoeForestCEOSearch@gmail.com


MEMO to:  Tahoe Forest Hospital District Board of Directors 
CEO Candidates 
July 20, 2015 
 

 2 of 2  

ideas on why their experience and background will best serve TFHD.  These letters will be 
included in candidate information we present. 
 
I think we are making very good progress and I am optimistic about finding an excellent 
executive for TFHD’s future.  I would be happy to answer any questions or hear any 
suggestions. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. 

218 of 221



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Paige Thomason   DATE:  July 2015  
 Director of Marketing & Communications  
 
 
 
CURRENT PROJECTS, APRIL-JULY 2015   
 
Health System Magazine:  The fifth edition of the TFHS Magazine was published July 2015 with a 
feature story about the Wellness Neighborhood.  The edition also included local physician profiles, 
health system news briefs, Measure C project updates, wellness news and information about accessing 
hospital programs.  Distribution is in progress and includes insertions in the Sierra Sun, N. Tahoe 
Bonanza, Truckee/North Tahoe Chambers and Visitor Centers, local physician offices and direct mailing 
lists.  Total distribution not counting website downloads is 14,174.  The piece is promoted heavily 
through public relations outreach, print advertising, website and social media.   
 
Orthopedic Advisory Council:  Work continues with this community group to develop programs and 
messaging.  Marketing support is being provided for community outreach to service groups beginning 
this fall.   
 
Total Joint Program:  Development continues with Dan Coll for marketing outreach of the Total Joint 
Program which includes promotion of the direct anterior approach hip replacement, and partial and 
total knee surgery and shoulder replacements.  Web pages, print and online advertising, public 
relations and collateral materials are in development and near completion.   
 
Wellness Neighborhood:   Second printing of the mental health provider handbook was recently 
completed, mailed and posted online.  Outreach for the “Rethink Healthy” and “BeFit” campaigns is 
ongoing.  
 
Website:  Preliminary work is underway for redevelopment of the TFHD website.  This would include a 
complete redesign of the site.   
 
 
 
 Continued-  
 
 
 
 
 
 

219 of 221



BoardofDirectors: Marketing Update July 2015 
 

 
 
Other Marketing, Advertising and Public Relations Activities Completed or in Progress:   

 Five star hospital advertising, PR and social media campaign  

 GU Memorial Golf Classic and Best of Tahoe Chefs marketing support  

 Quality pages redesign/update, TFHD website  

 1Bios Health Management Program  

 CT scan marketing  

 Place Based Marketing committee  

 IVCH marketing support for monthly programs such as sports physicals, health talks, ER  

 Hospice Thrift Store support  

 CEO search community outreach  

 Yoga for Life marketing support  

 Community Walking Challenge marketing support  

 Cancer Center marketing support  

 Employee Town Hall Meetings production  

 Nurse of the Year 

 Breast Health Awareness Month planning  

 MultiSpecialty Clinics advertising campaign  

 Sleep Medicine program  

 Affordable Health Screenings 

 Center for Health and Sports Performance programs and services   
 
 
 
 

220 of 221



Date:  __________________________________________

Exceed 

Expectations

Meets 

Expectations

Below 

Expectations

1
Overall, the meeting agenda is clear and includes 

appropriate topics for Board consideration
5 4 3 2 1

2
The consent agenda includes appropriate topics and 

worked well
5 4 3 2 1

3
The Board packet & handout materials were sufficiently 

clear and at a ‘governance level’
5 4 3 2 1

4 Discussions were on target 5 4 3 2 1

5 Board members were prepared and involved 5 4 3 2 1

6  The education was relevant and helpful 5 4 3 2 1

7 Board focused on issues of strategy and policy 5 4 3 2 1

8 Objectives for meeting were accomplished 5 4 3 2 1

9  Meeting ran on time 5 4 3 2 1

Please provide further feedback here: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Board of Directors Meeting Evaluation Form

G:\Admin\BoardofDirectors\Forms\MeetingEvaluationForm 221 of 221


	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	2015 Jul 28 Regular BOD Meeting_Agenda

	12.	MEDICAL STAFF REPORT
	a)  MEC Report_July 2015

	13.	CONSENT CALENDAR
	13.1.	Approval of Minutes
	a)  05/26/2015 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes
	b)  06/30/2015 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes

	13.2.	Financial Report
	13.3.	Contracts
	13.3.1.	Tahoe_Infectious_Disease_TFHD_MDA_For_Antimicrobial_Stewardship_Program_2015


	14.	ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND ACTION
	14.1.	Facilities Operating Room (OR) Light Project Update and Recommendation For Award of Bid
	a) Executive Summary
	b)  Recommendation for Award

	/tmp/tfs/84/1437771036/2306062.pdf
	14.3. Contracts
	14.3.1.	NTRMG_TFHD_Diagnostic_Imaging_PSA_2015

	14.4. ABD-21 Physician and Professional Service Agreements Policy
	a)  Executive Summary
	b) ABD-21_Mark-up Version
	c)  ABD-21_Clean Version

	14.5. Board Goals
	14.5.1. Six-month Check-in/Update
	a)  Executive Summary
	b)  Board Goals Dashboard



	15.	BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	15.1.	Finance Committee Meeting

	16.	INFORMATIONAL REPORTS
	16.1.	Strategic Initiatives Update
	a)  CEO/CIO Report_July 2015
	b)  CNO/COO Report_July 2015

	16.2.	CEO Search
	16.3.	Marketing Update

	23.	MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT
	a)  Meeting Evaluation Form


